
AGENDA 
LEXINGTON COUNTY COUNCIL 

Committee Meetings 
April 23, 2013 

Second Floor - County Administration Building 
212 South Lake Drive, Lexington, SC 29072 

Telephone - 803-785-8103 -- FAX 803-785-8101 
 

 
If special accommodations are needed to participate in this public meeting, please contact 
the Lexington County Council Office at (803) 785-8103 or dburnett@lex-co.com at least 
two business days prior to the scheduled meeting date. 
 
 
*Times are tentatively scheduled committee meetings that may run behind or ahead of 
schedule; therefore, the times could change by as much as 30 minutes. Also, if time permits, 
Council may elect to enter into Executive Session to discuss contractual, legal, personnel 
matters, etc. 
 
2:00 p.m. - 2:05 p.m. - Economic Development 
(1) Meeting of March 26, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ............................................................................. A 
(2) Old Business/New Business 
(3) Adjournment 
 
2:05 p.m. - 2:25 p.m. - Planning and Administration 
(1) N-Sync Committee Briefing (Goal 2) - Planning & GIS - Charlie Compton, Director of 

Planning and GIS 
(2) Meeting of March 26, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ............................................................................. B 
(3) Old Business/New Business 
(4) Adjournment 
 
2:25 p.m. - 2:30 p.m. - Justice 
(1) Meeting of March 26, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ............................................................................. C 
(2) Old Business/New Business 
(3) Adjournment 
 
2:30 p.m. - 2:35 p.m. - Health and Human Services 
(1) Meeting of March 26, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ............................................................................. D 
(2) Old Business/New Business 
(3) Adjournment 
 
2:35 p.m. - 3:00 p.m. - Public Works & Solid Waste Management 
(1) FY 12 & 13 Municipal "C" Fund Request - Public Works - Wrenn Barrett, Director of Public 

Works ................................................................................................................................................ E 
(2) Solid Waste Management Grant Application - Solid Waste Management - Dave Eger, 

Director .............................................................................................................................................. F 

1



(3) Solid Waste Used Oil Grant Application - Solid Waste Management - Dave Eger/Director ................ G 
(4) Waste Tire Grant Application - Solid Waste Management - Dave Eger/Director................................. H 
(5) Meeting of March 26, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ............................................................................. I 
(6) Old Business/New Business New Road/Corley Mill/Riverchase Monthly Update; Flooding 

Issues/Kinley Creek Criteria; Stormwater Utility Fee; Pine Glenn Alternate Exit (Emergency 
Access Road Cost); and Active Construction Bond Update (Prior to FY13/14 Budget 

(7) Adjournment 
 
3:00 p.m. - 4:15 p.m. - Committee of the Whole 
(1) Resolution R13-03 - Creation of a Commission .................................................................................. J 
(2) Meeting of March 26, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ............................................................................. K 
(3) Possible Executive Session if Time Permits 
(4) Old Business/New Business 
(5) Adjournment 
 
 

2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Economic Development 
J. Jeffcoat, Chairman 
D. Summers, V Chairman 
J. Kinard 
B. Keisler 
T. Cullum 
 

Planning & Administration 
D. Summers, Chairman 
K. Collins, V Chairman 
J. Kinard 
B. Matthews 
T. Cullum 

  
Justice 
J. Kinard, Chairman 
J. Jeffcoat, V Chairman 
K. Collins 
B. Keisler 
D. Summers 

Health & Human Services 
B. Matthews, Chairman 
B. Keisler, V Chairman 
J. Kinard 
F. Townsend, III 
K. Collins 

  
Public Works & Solid Waste 
Management 
T. Cullum, Chairman 
D. Summers, V Chairman 
B. Keisler 
J. Jeffcoat 
B. Matthews 

Committee of the Whole 
B. Banning, Sr., Chairman 
J. Jeffcoat, V Chairman 
J. Kinard 
F. Townsend, III 
K. Collins 
D. Summers 
B. Keisler 
B. Matthews 
T. Cullum 

 

  
 
 
 

GOALS 
1. Provide for public services to citizens of Lexington County. 
2. Manage growth to meet the needs of Lexington County. 
3. Provide innovative Financial Management. 

3



 
AGENDA 

LEXINGTON COUNTY COUNCIL 
April 23, 2013 

Second Floor - Dorothy K. Black Council Chambers - County Administration Building 
212 South Lake Drive, Lexington, South Carolina 29072 

Telephone - 803-785-8103 FAX - 803-785-8101 
 
 

 
If special accommodations are needed to participate in this public meeting, please contact 
the Lexington County Council Office at (803) 785-8103 or dburnett@lex-co.com at least 
two business days prior to the scheduled meeting date. 
 
 
4:30 P.M. - COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
Call to Order/Invocation 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Chairman's Report 
 
Presentation 
(1) VFW Public Servant Awards - Hugh Gunter, Commander VFW Post 8738 (Lexington); and 

Rod Burne, Senior Vice Commander, VFW State Representative ....................................................... L 
 
Presentation of Resolutions 
(1) Volunteer Arbitrators - 11th Judicial Circuit - Presented by Councilman Jeffcoat 
(2) Elizabeth L. Shockley Presented by Councilman Kinard 
(3) Billy R. Oswald Presented by Chairman Banning 
(4) J. Larry Stroud Presented by  Chairman Banning 
(5) John J. Fechtel Presented by County Council 
 
Administrator's Report 
 
Employee Recognition - Joe Mergo, County Administrator 
(1) Employee of the First Quarter 
 
Resolution 
(1) National Tourism Week...................................................................................................................... M 
 
Appointments 
(1) Boards and Commissions ................................................................................................................... N 
 
 

4



Bids/Purchases/RFPs 
(1) Wastewater Engineering for Chapin Technology Park - Economic Development ............................... O 
(2) Seventeen (17) ECC Computers - 911 Communications Center/EOC ................................................. P 
(3) Mobile Data Terminals with Mounts - Public Safety/EMS ................................................................. Q 
(4) 2013 Asphalt Maintenance Program - Public Works ........................................................................... R 
(5) 4X4 Sports Utility Vehicle (SUV) with Winch - Public Works/Administration................................... S 
(6) Chariot Street Improvement Project - Public Works ........................................................................... T 
(7) One (1) Utility Truck with Equipment and Accessories - Sheriff's Department ................................... U 
(8) One (1) Articulating Off Road Dump Truck (Addition) - Solid Waste Management ........................... V 
 
Ordinance(s) 
(1) Ordinance 13-01 - An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 95-12 as Amended by Subsequent 

Ordinances Relating to the Joint County Industrial Park of Lexington & Newberry Counties 
so as to Enlarge the Park so as to Include the Lexington County Technology Park Property - 
3rd & Final Reading ............................................................................................................................ W 

(2) Ordinance 13-02 - An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 12-08 Authorizing the Conveyance of 
8.90 Acres, More or Less, to the Town of Lexington - 3rd & Final Reading ........................................ X 

(3) Ordinance 13-03 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Courthouse Plaza to the Town 
of Lexington for Special Events - 2nd Reading .................................................................................... Y 

(4) Ordinance 13-05 - Ordinance Adopting an Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 - 1st 
Reading  (* The millages listed are a starting point based upon the 2012-2013 millages) .................... Z 

 
Committee Reports 
Justice, J. Kinard, Jr., Chairman 
(1) FY 2013 Bulletproof Vest Application ............................................................................................... 1 
(2) FY 2013 State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP) Assistance ........................................... 2 
 
Public Works & Solid Waste Management, T. Cullum, Chairman 
(1) Solid Waste Management Grant Application ...................................................................................... F 
(2) Solid Waste Used Oil Grant Application ............................................................................................ G 
(3) Waste Tire Grant Application ............................................................................................................. H 
 
Committee of the Whole, B. Banning, Sr., Chairman 
(1) Resolution R13-03 - Creation of a Commission .................................................................................. J 
 
County Transportation, B. Banning, Sr., Chairman 
(1) FY 12 & 13 Municipal "C" Fund Request........................................................................................... E 
 
Budget Amendment Resolutions 
 
6:00 P.M. - Public Hearing 
(1) Ordinance 13-03 - Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Courthouse Plaza to the Town of 

Lexington for Special Events .............................................................................................................. 3 
 
 
 

5



OLD BUSINESS/NEW BUSINESS 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION/LEGAL BRIEFING 
 
MATTERS REQUIRING A VOTE AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

6



**This page intentionally left blank**

7



**This page intentionally left blank**

8



**This page intentionally left blank**

9



**This page intentionally left blank**

10



4/18/2013   Page 1 of 4

Public Works - FY 12 & 13 Municipal "C" Fund Request  - 04/23/2013

11



4/18/2013   Page 2 of 4

Public Works - FY 12 & 13 Municipal "C" Fund Request  - 04/23/2013

12



4/18/2013   Page 3 of 4

Public Works - FY 12 & 13 Municipal "C" Fund Request  - 04/23/2013

13



4/18/2013   Page 4 of 4

Public Works - FY 12 & 13 Municipal "C" Fund Request  - 04/23/2013

14



County of Lexington 
Department of Solid Waste Management 

498 Landfill Lane 
Lexington, South Carolina 29073 

Telephone: (803) 755-3325 
Facsimile:  (803) 755-3833 

 
 
 

To:  Adam DuBose, County Grants Manager 
 
From: David L. Eger, Director 
 
Date: April 11, 2013 
 
Re:  DHEC Solid Waste Management Grant Application 
 

 
 
Solid Waste Management is requesting Council committee approval to apply for DHEC’s 
Solid Waste Management Grant.  
 
We are requesting grant funding for reimbursement of a portion of e-waste contractor 
expenses as provided for in the grant proposal from DHEC.  Allowable grant expenses are 
based on a per capita cost based on the County’s population.  If approved these funds would 
be used to offset County budget funds in the Solid Waste Department for e-waste recycling. 
 
With the May 3, 2013 deadline required by DHEC, it is requested that the grant be reported 
out to the Council at the 4:30 pm meeting on April 23, 2013. 

 
We appreciate your understanding and consideration of this matter. If you have any questions, 
please let me know.    

 
 
 

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 6Solid Waste Management - Solid Waste Management Grant Application - 04/23/2013
15



Title of Grant: Solid Waste Management Grant

Fund: 5720      Department: 121207
No. No.

Type of Summary: Grant Application X Grant Award

Type of Grant: X

Grant Period: to

Responsible Departmental Grant Personnel: David L. Eger, Director

Date Grant Information Released:        Date Grant Application Due:

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Grant Request Summary Form

Solid Waste/Recycling
Title

Solid Waste Management Grant

March 20, 2013 May 3, 2013

Title

July 1, 2013 June 30, 2014

Reimbursement Block

Grant Overview:  

Lexington County Solid Waste Management is applying for grant funds through DHEC to assist in covering a portion of the 
contactor cost for the recycling e-waste by the County. 

Grant Expenditures (Please attach a detailed budget with Excel spreadsheet, Overview, Line Item Narratives, etc.):

Personnel
Operating * Application Amount:   

Capital * Award Amount:            

Total

Local Match Required: Yes No X

If Yes, What is the Percentage / Amount:

Dept. Preparer:

F:\windows\excel2k\forms\grants\blankgrantsummaryform.xls Dept. Approval:

Last Updated:  12/13/06     By:  AD Finance Approval:

DE 4/11/2013

Initials Date

AD 4/12/2013

-$                  
37,398.00$       37,398.00$ 

-$                  

%

37,398.00$       

Requirements at the End of this Grant (please explain in detail):

Submitting quarterly and year-end reports to DHEC.

4/18/2013   Page 2 of 6Solid Waste Management - Solid Waste Management Grant Application - 04/23/2013
16



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
SOLID WASTE DHEC MANAGEMENT GRANT

Annual Budget 
Fiscal Year - 2013-14

Amended Projected
Received Budget Revenues

Object Actual Thru Dec Thru Dec Thru Jun Requested Recommend Approved
Code   Revenue Account Title 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14

*Solid Waste DHEC Management Grant 5720:
- Reimbursement Grant -
Revenues: 

458000 State Grant Income 3,230 7,000 5,000 5,000 37,398 37,398
461000 Investment Interest 0 0 0 0 0 0

** Total Revenue 3,230 7,000 5,000 5,000 37,398 37,398

***Total Appropriation 5,000 37,398 37,398

FUND BALANCE 
      Beginning of Year 1,444 1,444 1,444 1,444

FUND BALANCE - Projected
      End of Year 1,444 1,444 1,444 1,444

Fund: 5720
Division: Public Works
Organization: 121207 - Solid Waste / Recycling

BUDGET
Object Expenditure 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14
Code Classification Expend Expend Amended Requested Recommend ApprovedCode   Classification Expend Expend Amended Requested Recommend Approved

(Dec) (Dec)
Personnel

* Total Personnel 0 0 0 0 0

Operating Expenses
520200 Contracted Services 3,230 0 0 0 0
520239 E-Waste Recycling 0 0 0 37,398 37,398
520400 Advertising & Publicity 0 0 1,267 0 0
521200 Operating Supplies 0 0 0 0 0
521213 Public Education Supplies 0 0 3,733 0 0
525100 Postage 0 0 0 0 0

* Total Operating 3,230 0 5,000 37,398 37,398

**Total Personnel & Operating 3,230 0 5,000 37,398 37,398

Capital
599999 Capital Clearing (29,112) 0 0 0 0

All Other Equipment 29,112 0 0 0 0

**Total Capital 0 0 0 0 0

** Total Budget Appropriation 3,230 0 5,000 37,398 37,398

4/18/2013   Page 3 of 6Solid Waste Management - Solid Waste Management Grant Application - 04/23/2013
17



FUND 5720 
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT (121207) Page 1 
FY 2013- 14 BUDGET REQUEST 

 

 
 

SECTION V. – PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
 
Summary of Program 
  
DHEC Solid Waste Management Grant 
  
Objective: 

 
This program is a proposed grant application with South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control 
(DHEC).  DHEC is offering grant funds to reimburse Counties for contractor costs associated with recycling of e-
waste based on a set per capita fee and total County population.   
 

 
 
 
 

                             SECTION VI. A. – LINE ITEM NARRATIVES 
 
 

SECTION VI. B. – SUMMARY OF REVENUES 
 
 

458000 – STATE GRANT INCOME                                                                                                              $37,398 
 
 

 
 
 

SECTION VI. C. - OPERATING LINE ITEM NARRATIVES 
 
 

520239 – E-WASTE RECYCLING                                                         $ 37,398 
 
Grant funds will be used to off-set County expenditures for contract collection and recycling of e-waste at the 
Edmund Landfill, E-waste collection drop off. 
 
Lexington County Population 267,130 x 0.14 per capita (maximum allowed by grant) = $37,398  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4/18/2013   Page 4 of 6Solid Waste Management - Solid Waste Management Grant Application - 04/23/2013
18



SC DHEC Office of Solid Waste Reduction and Recycling 
FY2014 DHEC Solid Waste Reduction and Recycling Grant Application 

 

1. Lexington County Solid Waste Management 

 

2. Joe Mergo, Lexington County Administrator 
212 S. Lake Drive 
Lexington, SC  29072 
Office:  803.785.8100 
Fax:  803.785.8101 
jmergo@lex‐co.com 

 
Adam DuBose, Grants Manager 
212 S. Lake Drive 
Lexington, SC  29072 
Office:  803.785.8105 
Fax:  803.785.8379 
adubose@lex‐co.com 
 

David L. Eger, Director, SWM 

498 Landfill Lane 

Lexington, SC 29073 

Office:803.785.3335 

Fax: 803.755.3833 

 deger@lex‐co.com 

 
       

3. Describe the overall Project: 

Grant funding is requested under category 1, sub goal for e‐scrap recycling contractor costs – to 

reimburse the County for expenses paid to a contractor for the recycling of electronics 

materials. 

 

4. Identify the targeted commodity: 

E‐scrap materials. 

 

5. Describe the targeted source(s) of the materials: 

E‐scrap materials from County residents and businesses.  E‐scrap materials are delivered to the 

Edmund Landfill electronics building by residents and businesses in Lexington County. 

 

6. Describe where the material is currently going and where the material will be going: 

All e‐scrap materials are delivered to the Edmund Landfill electronics building by residents and 

businesses in Lexington County. 

4/18/2013   Page 5 of 6Solid Waste Management - Solid Waste Management Grant Application - 04/23/2013
19



 

7. Describe how the materials will be collected, transported and marketed: 

Lexington County receives electronic materials from residents and businesses at the Edmund 

Landfill, where they are stored in the electronics building until they can be loaded into a tractor 

trailer truck for delivery to a processor for recycling.  The County also hosts electronic recycling 

events every other month.  The material generated is collected and delivered directly by the 

processor to their facility.  

 

8. Provide a list of potential vendors for the materials: 

Current State Contractor – Creative Recycling. 

 

9. Describe all outreach/educational activities that will be undertaken to promote the proposed 

project: 

County recycling brochures, web site and newspaper or cable TV ads.  

 

10. Describe the amount of targeted material currently being collected from the targeted source: 

The total estimated tonnage of e‐scrap delivered to the Edmund landfill and collected at e‐scrap 

events for FY 2012‐2013 is 286 tons or 572,000 lbs. 

 

11. Describe the estimated increase or improvement expected as a result of the grant: 

The receipt of e‐scrap continues to increase with the volume of materials still in homes and 

businesses.  The improvement expected with grant funding is assistance in the cost of the 

program. 

 

12. Explain how you arrived at this estimate: 

Estimated tonnage for FY 2013‐2014 is based on actual tonnage of e‐scrap materials for FY 

2011‐12 which equaled 239 tons. 

 

      13‐15. Regionalization: 

          This is not a regional program but we will reach out to our municipalities and offer assistance. 

 

        16.  Provide a detailed budget for the project including grant funds requested, matching funds 

available, in‐kind contributions and any other contributions: 

  Total Population for Lexington County 267,130 X $0.14 per capita (grant allowance) = Total 

Request $ 37,398. 

 

          17.  Describe how this project will be funded in the future: 

                  Any continuance of this program will be funded by Lexington County or through future grants. 

 

 

4/18/2013   Page 6 of 6Solid Waste Management - Solid Waste Management Grant Application - 04/23/2013
20



County of Lexington 
Department of Solid Waste Management 

498 Landfill Lane 
Lexington, South Carolina 29073 

Telephone: (803) 755-3325 
Facsimile:  (803) 755-3833 

 
 
 

To:  Adam DuBose, County Grants Manager 
 
From: David L. Eger, Director 
 
Date: April 11, 2013 
 
Re:  DHEC Used Oil Grant Application 
 

 
 
Solid Waste Management is requesting Council committee approval to apply for DHEC’s 
Used Oil Grant.  
 
We are requesting grant funding for conversion of two existing farmer oil tanks to be able to 
accept oil with mixed fuel, operational supplies (oil bottle bags), and educational supplies 
such as brochures and advertisements. We are also requesting funding for professional 
development. 
 
With the May 3, 2013 deadline required by DHEC, it is requested that the grant be reported 
out to the Council at the 4:30 pm meeting on April 23, 2013. 

 
We appreciate your understanding and consideration of this matter. If you have any questions, 
please let me know.    

 
 
 

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 9Solid Waste Management - Solid Waste Used Oil Grant Application - 04/23/2013
21



Title of Grant: DHEC Used Oil Grant

Fund: 5722      Department: 121207
No. No.

Type of Summary: Grant Application X Grant Award

Type of Grant: X

Grant Period: to

Responsible Departmental Grant Personnel: David L. Eger, Director

Date Grant Information Released:        Date Grant Application Due:

July 1, 2013 June 30, 2014

Reimbursement Block

Solid Waste / DHEC Used Oil Grant

March 20, 2013 May 3, 2013

Title

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Grant Request Summary Form

Solid Waste/Recycling
Title

Grant Overview:  

Lexington County Solid Waste Management is applying for grant funds through DHEC to maintain and improve used oil recycling 
in Lexington County.  Funds are being requested for the following items:  (2) Farmer Oil Tank Conversion Kits, (20) boxes of oil
bottle bags, publicity and public education, and training/travel for County staff. 

Grant Expenditures (Please attach a detailed budget with Excel spreadsheet, Overview, Line Item Narratives, etc.):

Personnel
Operating * Application Amount:   

Capital * Award Amount:            

Total

Local Match Required: Yes No X

If Yes, What is the Percentage / Amount:

Dept. Preparer:

F:\windows\excel2k\forms\grants\blankgrantsummaryform.xls Dept. Approval:

Last Updated:  12/13/06     By:  AD Finance Approval:

16,850.00$ 
3,500.00$         

%

16,850.00$       

-$                  
13,350.00$       

Initials Date

AD 4/12/2013

DE 4/11/2013

Requirements at the End of this Grant (please explain in detail):

Submitting quarterly and year-end reports to DHEC.

4/18/2013   Page 2 of 9Solid Waste Management - Solid Waste Used Oil Grant Application - 04/23/2013
22



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
DHEC USED OIL GRANT

Annual Budget 
Fiscal Year - 2013-14

Amended Projected
Received Budget Revenues

Object Actual Thru Dec Thru Dec Thru Jun Requested Recommend Approved
Code   Revenue Account Title 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14

*DHEC Used Oil Grant 5722:
- Reimbursement Grant -
Revenues: 

458000 State Grant Income 12,960 2,830 59,939 59,939 16,850 16,850
805700 Op Trn from Solid Waste 0 0 0 0 0 0

** Total Revenue 12,960 2,830 59,939 59,939 16,850 16,850

***Total Appropriation 59,939 16,850 16,850

FUND BALANCE 
      Beginning of Year 0 0 0 0

FUND BALANCE - Projected
      End of Year 0 0 0 0

Fund: 5722
Division: Public Works
Organization: 121207 - Solid Waste / Recycling

BUDGET
Object Expenditure 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14
C d Cl ifi ti E d E d A d d R t d R d A dCode   Classification Expend Expend Amended Requested Recommend Approved

(Dec) (Dec)
Operating Expenses

520400 Advertising and Publicity 1,831 0 2,000 2,000 2,000
521200 Operating Supplies 9,801 0 7,400 7,600 7,600
521213 Public Education Supplies 329 0 3,000 3,000 3,000
525210 Conference, Meeting & Training Expense 999 0 750 750 750

* Total Operating 12,960 0 13,150 13,350 13,350

**Total Personnel & Operating 12,960 0 13,150 13,350 13,350

Capital
599999 Capital Clearing (20,809) 0 0 0 0

All Other Equipment 20,809 29,564 46,789
(2) Farmer Oil Tank Conversion Kits 3,500 3,500

**Total Capital 0 29,564 46,789 3,500 3,500

** Total Appropriation 12,960 29,564 59,939 16,850 16,850

4/18/2013   Page 3 of 9Solid Waste Management - Solid Waste Used Oil Grant Application - 04/23/2013
23



FUND 5722 
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT (121207) Page 1 
FY 2013-14 BUDGET REQUEST 

 

 
 

SECTION V – PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
 
 
Summary of Programs 
  
DHEC Used Oil Recycling Grant 
  
Objective: 

 
This program is a proposed grant application with South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control 
(DHEC). Funding is being requested to maintain and upgrade our used oil collection program, educate our residents 
about the program and provide training for our County staff. 
 
Obtain funding to purchase (2) Famer Oil Tank Conversion kits. Also requested are oil bottle bags. 
 
Funding will also help educate the public about our program by developing and printing a used oil recycling 
brochure, running advertisements in the newspaper and placing billboards in visible areas. 
 
Finally, funding will be used to send staff to the Carolina Recycling Association Conference. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4/18/2013   Page 4 of 9Solid Waste Management - Solid Waste Used Oil Grant Application - 04/23/2013
24



FUND 5722 
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT (121207) Page 2 
FY 2013-14 BUDGET REQUEST 

 

 
 
 

SECTION VI. – LINE ITEM NARRATIVES 
 

 
SECTION VI. A. – SUMMARY OF REVENUES 

 
458000 – State Grant Income                                                                                                                           $16,850 
 
 
 
 

 
 

SECTION VI. C. – OPERATING LINE ITEM NARRATIVES 
 
 

520400 – ADVERTISING AND PUBLICITY                                                                                                 $2,000 
 
(1) Advertisement in Neighbors section of The State newspaper promoting the county’s used oil recycling program. 
(1 newspaper advertisement x $515.00 each = $515.00). 
  
(3) Billboard advertisements placed in various locations around the county promoting the recycling of used motor 
oil. (3 billboards x $495.00 each = $1,485). 
 
 
521200 – OPERATING SUPPLIES                                                                                                                  $7,600 
       
(40) Boxes of Oil Bottle Bags (Box of 50) x $190/Box = $7,600                  
These bags are used to line oil bottle recycling containers used for the collection and recycling of oil bottles from 
the County’s 11 collection and recycling Centers. 
 
 
521213 – PUBLIC EDUCATION                                                                                                                     $3,000 
 
(10,000) Used Oil Recycling Brochures                                                                                                                   
Brochures printed on recycled paper to educate residents about Lexington County’s used oil recycling program. The 
brochures will be distributed via mail, presentations, special events, collection and recycling centers. (10,000 x 
0.30each = $3,000) 
 
 
525210 – CONFERENCE, MEETING AND TRAINING EXPENSES                                                            $750 
 
The $750 professional development allotment will be used toward staff attendance at the Carolina Recycling 
Association Annual Meeting. 
 

4/18/2013   Page 5 of 9Solid Waste Management - Solid Waste Used Oil Grant Application - 04/23/2013
25



FUND 5722 
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT (121207) Page 3 
FY 2013-14 BUDGET REQUEST 

 

 
 
 

SECTION VI. D. – CAPITAL LINE ITEM NARRATIVES 
 

 
(2) FARMER OIL TANK CONVERSION KITS                                                                                            $3,500                  
 
Funding will be requested to convert (2) farmer used oil collection tanks into gas/oil mixture collection tanks. These 
tanks are located at the Leesville and Summit Collection and Recycling Centers. 
 

4/18/2013   Page 6 of 9Solid Waste Management - Solid Waste Used Oil Grant Application - 04/23/2013
26



SC DHEC Office of Solid Waste Reduction and Recycling 

FY2014 Used Oil Grant Application 
 

 

1) Lexington County Solid Waste Management 
 
 

2)       Joe G. Mergo III, Lexington County Administrator 
212 S. Lake Drive 
Lexington, SC  29072 
Office:  803.785.8100 
Fax:  803.785.8101 
jmergo@lex-co.com 
 
Adam DuBose, Grants Manager 
212 S. Lake Drive 
Lexington, SC  29072 
Office:  803.785.8105 
Fax:  803.785.8379 
adubose@lex-co.com 
 
David L. Eger, Director, SWM 
498 Landfill Lane 
Lexington, SC  29073 
Office:  803.785.3335 
Fax:  803.755.3833 
deger@lex-co.com 
 
 

3) List the public education/outreach activities performed last year.  In FY12, presentations 
were given to several community organizations and schools. Also, billboards were placed 
around different areas of the county by Lamar Advertising, specifically promoting used 
motor oil recycling. Information was also provided at the County Energy Expo and Kids 
Day. 

 

 

 

 

4/18/2013   Page 7 of 9Solid Waste Management - Solid Waste Used Oil Grant Application - 04/23/2013
27



 

 

4) Attach a list and/or map of all sites at which used oil, farmer oil, gas/oil mixtures, oil 
filters, and oil bottles are collected.   

Site Location 
Used 
Oil 

Gas/Oil 
Mixture 

Farmer 
Oil 

Oil 
Filters 

Oil 
Bottles 

Ball Park Rd Lexington X   X X 

Bush River Rd Columbia X   X X 

Chapin Chapin X   X X 

Edmund Lexington X   X X 
Edmund 
Landfill Lexington X X X 

Hollow Creek Gilbert X   X X 

Leesville Leesville   X X X 

Pelion Pelion X   X X 

River Chase Lexington X   X X 

Sandhills Cayce X   X X 

Southeast Swansea X X X 

Summit Leesville   X X X 
 
 

5) Description of items requested, specific amount, location, and descriptive literature: 
 
a) Conversion of Farmer Oil Tank to Oil/Gas Mixture Tank (Total Requested:  $3,500) 

a. Two Farmer Tanks to be converted to oil/gas mixture tanks.  
b. Cleaning and Tank Conversion (each) =  $1,635 x 2 tanks =$3,270 + tax = $3,500 
c. The two existing Farmer Tanks will be cleaned and conversion kits installed at the 

Leesville and Summit Collection and Recycling Centers.  This change will permit 
the tanks to accept oil/gas mixtures, in addition to their status as Farmer tanks.    

d. The conversion of these tanks will enhance the county’s used oil recycling program 
by providing additional locations that accept oil and gas mixtures.  With their 
conversion, all eleven (11) County facilities will be able to accept the oil/gas 
mixtures.                                                    

 

b) Oil Bottle Bags (Total Requested:  $7,600) 
a. Forty (40) of 50 bags per box 
b. $190.00 per box 

4/18/2013   Page 8 of 9Solid Waste Management - Solid Waste Used Oil Grant Application - 04/23/2013
28



c. The oil bottle bags will be used at all 11 Collection and Recycling Centers in 
Lexington County.    

d. The bags are needed to help sustain the oil bottle recycling program in Lexington 
County.  
        

6) Contract Services: 
LCSWM is not requesting funds for contract services. 

a. N/A 
b. N/A 
c. LCSWM currently works with Santee Cooper.  LCSWM participates in Santee 

Cooper’s Give Oil for Energy Recovery (GOFER) program.  Santee Cooper removes 
and recycles the used oil collected at all 11 Collection and Recycling Center and the 
Edmund Landfill.   
 

7) Public Education: 
LCSWM is requesting $5,000 for public education.  Grant funding will be used to print 
brochures to educate residents about Lexington County’s used oil program.  The brochures 
will be distributed via mail, presentations, special events, and at collection and recycling 
centers.  (10,000 brochures x $0.30 each = $3,000).  Grant funding will also be used to 
advertise the recycling program via the newspaper and/or billboards.  One Newspaper 
advertisement $515 and (3) Billboards @ $495 each = $1,485 for a total of $2,000 

     
 

8) Professional Development: 
LCSWM is requesting $750 for professional development.  Grant funding will be used to 
send the Solid Waste Director, Recycling Coordinator, or other Solid Waste Management 
staff to seminars, trainings and professional workshops.   
 

9) Other Direct Costs: 
LCSWM is not requesting funds for other direct costs.       

 
 

 

4/18/2013   Page 9 of 9Solid Waste Management - Solid Waste Used Oil Grant Application - 04/23/2013
29



County of Lexington 
Department of Solid Waste Management 

498 Landfill Lane 
Lexington, South Carolina 29073 

Telephone: (803) 755-3325 
Facsimile:  (803) 755-3833 

 
 
 

To:  Adam DuBose, County Grants Manager 
 
From: David L. Eger, Director 
 
Date: April 11, 2013 
 
Re:  DHEC Waste Tire Grant Application 
 

 
 
Solid Waste Management is requesting Council committee approval to apply for DHEC’s 
Waste Tire Grant.  
 
We are requesting grant funding for educational supplies such as brochures and 
advertisements. We are also requesting funding for professional development. 
 
With the May 3, 2013 deadline required by DHEC, it is requested that the grant be reported 
out to the Council at the 4:30 pm meeting on April 23, 2013. 

 
We appreciate your understanding and consideration of this matter. If you have any questions, 
please let me know.    

 
 
 

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 7Solid Waste Management - Waste Tire Grant Application  - 04/23/2013
30



Title of Grant: Solid Waste Tire Grant

Fund: 5721      Department: 121207
No. No.

Type of Summary: Grant Application X Grant Award

Type of Grant: X

Grant Period: to

Responsible Departmental Grant Personnel: David L. Eger, Director

Date Grant Information Released:        Date Grant Application Due:

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Grant Request Summary Form

Solid Waste/Recycling
Title

Solid Waste / Waste Tire Grant

March 20, 2013 May 3, 2013

Title

July 1, 2013 June 30, 2014

Reimbursement Block

Grant Overview:  

Lexington County Solid Waste Management is applying for grant funds through DHEC to Solid Waste promote proper tire 
disposal/recycling and training/travel for County staff. 

Grant Expenditures (Please attach a detailed budget with Excel spreadsheet, Overview, Line Item Narratives, etc.):

Personnel
Operating * Application Amount:   

Capital * Award Amount:            

Total

Local Match Required: Yes No X

If Yes, What is the Percentage / Amount:

Dept. Preparer:

F:\windows\excel2k\forms\grants\blankgrantsummaryform.xls Dept. Approval:

Last Updated:  12/13/06     By:  AD Finance Approval:

DE 4/11/2013

Initials Date

AD 4/12/2013

-$                  
3,750.00$         3,750.00$   

-$                  

%

3,750.00$         

Requirements at the End of this Grant (please explain in detail):

Submitting quarterly and year-end reports to DHEC.

4/18/2013   Page 2 of 7Solid Waste Management - Waste Tire Grant Application  - 04/23/2013
31



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
SOLID WASTE TIRE GRANT

Annual Budget 
Fiscal Year - 2013-14

Amended Projected
Received Budget Revenues

Object Actual Thru Dec Thru Dec Thru Jun Requested Recommend Approved
Code   Revenue Account Title 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14

* Waste Tire Grant 5721:
- Reimbursement Grant -
Revenues:

458000 State Grant Income 3,599 2,699 33,750 33,750 3,750 3,750
461000 Investment Interest 0 0 0 0 0 0

** Total Revenue 3,599 2,699 33,750 33,750 3,750 3,750

***Total Appropriation 33,750 3,750 3,750

FUND BALANCE 
      Beginning of Year 215 215 215 215

FUND BALANCE - Projected
      End of Year 215 215 215 215

Fund: 5721
Division: Public Works
Organization: 121207 - Solid Waste / Recycling

BUDGET
Object Expenditure 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14Object Expenditure 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14
Code   Classification Expend Expend Amended Requested Recommend Approved

(Dec) (Dec)
Operating Expenses

520400 Advertising $ Publicity 2,360 0 0 0 0
521213 Public Education Supplies 550 0 3,000 3,000 3,000
525210 Conference, Meeting & Training Expenses 689 0 750 750 750

* Total Operating 3,599 0 3,750 3,750 3,750

**Total Personnel & Operating 3,599 0 3,750 3,750 3,750

Capital
All Other Equipment 0 0 30,000 0 0

**Total Capital 0 0 30,000 0 0

** Total Appropriation 3,599 0 33,750 3,750 3,750

4/18/2013   Page 3 of 7Solid Waste Management - Waste Tire Grant Application  - 04/23/2013
32



FUND 5721 
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT (121207) Page 1 
FY 2013- 14 BUDGET REQUEST 

 

 
 

SECTION V – PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
 
 
Summary of Program 
  
DHEC Waste Tire Grant 
  
Objective: 

 
This program is a proposed grant application with South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control 
(DHEC).   
 
The funds will be used to educate the public about proper tire disposal.  Funds will also be used to send staff to the 
Carolina Recycling Annual Conference or the SWANA Annual conference to promote professional development. 
 
 
 

SECTION VI. – LINE ITEM NARRATIVES 
 
 

SECTION IV. A. – SUMMARY OF REVENUES 
 

458000 – STATE GRANT INCOME                                                                                                                $3,750 
 
 

 
 

SECTION VI. C. OPERATING LINE ITEM NARRATIVES 
 

 
521213 – PUBLIC EDUCATION SUPPLIES                                                                                                  $3,000 
 
Funds to cover the purchase of educational supplies, brochures, etc.   
 
 
525210 – CONFERENCE, MEETING AND TRAINING EXPENSES                                                            $750   
 
Funds to cover the cost for staff to attend the Carolina Recycling Association’s annual conference or other 
professional development. 
 

 
 

 

4/18/2013   Page 4 of 7Solid Waste Management - Waste Tire Grant Application  - 04/23/2013
33



SC DHEC Office of Solid Waste Reduction and Recycling 
FY2014 Tire Grant Application 

 

 
1) Lexington County Solid Waste Management 

 
2)       Joe G. Mergo III, Lexington County Administrator 

212 S. Lake Drive 
Lexington, SC  29072 
Office:  803.785.8100 
Fax:  803.785.8101 
jmergo@lex-co.com 
 
Adam DuBose, Grants Manager 
212 S. Lake Drive 
Lexington, SC  29072 
Office:  803.785.8105 
Fax:  803.785.8379 
adubose@lex-co.com 
 
David L. Eger, Director, SWM 
498 Landfill Lane 
Lexington, SC  29073 
Office:  803.785.3335 
Fax:  803.755.3833 
deger@lex‐co.com 

 
 

3) County policy for accepting tires from residents: Locations, fees, estimated tonnages, 
and hauler. 

a. In Lexington County, residents may bring an unlimited amount of tires to the 
Lexington County C&D Landfill located at 498 Landfill Lane, Lexington SC. 

b. Residents are charged a fee of $1.50 per DOT tire or $150.00 per ton for non-DOT 
tires.  This fee is waived if the resident provides proof of prior payment for disposal 
for the tires presented.   

c. In FY 2014, Lexington County Solid Waste Management estimates that it will 
collect 550 tons of tires at the Edmund C&D Landfill. 

d. Lexington County Solid Waste Management contracts with U.S. Tire headquartered 
in Concord, North Carolina to haul, process and recycle the tires collected in 
Lexington County. 
 
 
 

4/18/2013   Page 5 of 7Solid Waste Management - Waste Tire Grant Application  - 04/23/2013
34



 
4) County policy for accepting tires from retailers of new tires: Locations, fees, 

documentation, estimated tonnages, and hauler. 
a. Retailers of new tires may bring tires to the Edmund C&D Landfill located at 498 

Landfill Lane, Lexington, SC 
b.  $1.50 per DOT tire or $150 per ton for non-DOT tires is charged to cover County 

staff and operating/equipment costs. If a tire disposer identifies themselves as a 
retailer, an ST-390 is required by scale personnel in order to waive this fee.  

c. Not available, all tires entering the site are tracked as one number.  We estimate 550 
tons of tires will be collected for recycling at the Edmund Landfill in FY 2014. 

d. Lexington County Solid Waste Management contracts with U.S. Tire headquartered 
in Concord, North Carolina to haul, process, and recycle the tires collected in 
Lexington County. 

 

5) County policy for accepting tires from automobile dismantlers: Locations, fees, 
documentation needed, estimated tonnages, and hauler. 
 

a. Automobile dismantlers may bring tires to the Edmund C&D Landfill located at 498 
Landfill Lane, Lexington, SC 

b. $1.50 per DOT tire or $150 per ton for non-DOT tires is charged to cover County 
staff and operating/equipment costs. If a tire disposer identifies themselves as an 
auto dismantler form AD2 is required by scale personnel in order to waive the fee. 

c. Not available, all tires entering the site are tracked as one number. We estimate 550 
tons of tires will be collected for recycling at the Edmund Landfill in FY 2014. 

d. Lexington County Solid Waste Management contracts with U.S. Tire headquartered 
in Concord, North Carolina to haul, process, and recycle the tires collected in 
Lexington County. 
 

6) County policy for accepting tires from other businesses. Locations, fees, estimated 
tonnages, and hauler. 
 

a. In Lexington County, businesses may bring an unlimited amount of tires to the 
Lexington County C&D Landfill located at 498 Landfill Lane, Lexington SC. 

b. $1.50 per DOT tire or $150.00 per ton for non-DOT tires is charged.  This fee is only 
waived is the business can provide proof of previous payment for disposal for the 
tires presented.  The handling fee is charged to businesses to offset the cost of 
personnel, operating and equipment expenses associated with the tire program. 

c. In FY 2014, Lexington County Solid Waste Management estimates that it will 
collect 550 tons of tires from residents and businesses at the Edmund C&D Landfill. 

4/18/2013   Page 6 of 7Solid Waste Management - Waste Tire Grant Application  - 04/23/2013
35



d. Lexington County Solid Waste Management uses U.S. Tire headquartered in 
Concord, North Carolina to haul, process, and recycle the tires collected in 
Lexington County. 

 
7) Please indicate source of County policy: Department of Solid Waste Management; 

handling fee as allowed by state regulation and was approved by County Council. 
 

8) Describe your current contract(s) for recycling waste tires, or if no contract is in place, 
provide a description of how a contract would be solicited and awarded.  
Lexington County has a contract with U.S. Tire Recycling, 6322 Poplar Tent Road, Concord, 
NC.  The contract is for the collection and recycling of waste tires from the Edmund C&D 
Landfill at a base cost $87.79 per ton plus a fuel surcharge $13/ton (Average – cost varies 
based on fuel cost & tons hauled) for a total of $100.79 per ton. 
 

9) If transportation is handled separately from recycling, provide a description of your 
current contract(s) for transportation of waste tires, or if no contract is in place, 
provide a description of how a contract would be solicited and awarded. 
U.S. Tires handles the recycling as well as transportation.  
 

10) Specify amount requested for contractor costs to manage current generation tires. 
LCSWM is not requesting funds to manage the current generation of tires.    
 

11) Specify amount requested for stockpile remediation. 
LCSWM is not requesting funds for stockpile remediation.    
 

12) Specify amount requested for professional development (Total requested: $750). 
 LCSWM is requesting $750 for professional development.  Grant funding will be used to 
send the Solid Waste Personnel to seminars, trainings and professional workshops.   
 

13) Specify amount requested for public education (Total requested: $3,000). 
LCSWM is requesting $3,000 for public education. Grant funding will be used to print 
brochures and supply other educational material to residents on proper tire disposal.  Public 
education funds will also be used to educate businesses about their role in proper tire 
disposal.   
 

14) Specify amount requested for other direct costs (Total requested: $0).  
LCSWM is not requesting funds for any additional projects.  

 

 

 

4/18/2013   Page 7 of 7Solid Waste Management - Waste Tire Grant Application  - 04/23/2013
36



**This page intentionally left blank**

37



**This page intentionally left blank**

38



**This page intentionally left blank**

39



Veterans of Foreign Wars 
PUBLIC SERVANT AWARDS 

County Council April 23, 2013 
 

Each  year  the  VFW  recognizes  Public  Servants  for  their  exceptional  efforts  to  serve  in  our 
communities.  In January of this year the VFW asked Lexington County Public Safety to provide 
them  with  nominations  for  three  award  categories:    Fire  Fighter,  Law  Enforcement  & 
Emergency  Medical  Technician  of  the  year.    Public  Safety  solicited  nominations  from  law 
enforcement  and  fire  service partners  from  around  Lexington County.   The  competition was 
close but the following personnel were selected for the below designated award recognition: 

 
Fire‐fighter ‐ Captain David Dorroh was selected as the Lexington County VFW Post and the South 
Carolina State Fire Fighter of the Year. 

Law Enforcement‐ Detective Brian Travis, was selected as the Lexington County VFW Post and the South 
Carolina State and the National Law Enforcement Officer of the Year. 

Emergency Medical Tech‐ Sergeant Vito Cosola, was selected as the Lexington County VFW Post and the 
South Carolina State Emergency Medical Technician of the Year. 

  

 

 

  

 

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 1Public Safety/Admin - VFW Public Servant Awards - 04/23/2013
40



 R E S O L U T I O N 
 
THE COUNCIL FOR THE COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH 
CAROLINA, MEETING IN GENERAL SESSION THE 23RD DAY OF 
APRIL, TWO THOUSAND AND THIRTEEN, ADOPTED THE 
FOLLOWING: 
 

WHEREAS, tourism brings in 4 million visitors to the Columbia region every year; and  
 

 WHEREAS, tourism generates $1 billion in direct spending in the Columbia region 
every year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, tourism directly employs more than 65,000 people in the Columbia region; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, tourism saves every household in South Carolina $691 in taxes annually; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, tourism is the largest industry in South Carolina according to many 
economists; and  
 

WHEREAS, tourism supports the jobs of nearly 1 in 10 South Carolinians; and  
 
WHEREAS, National Tourism Week is an annual event sponsored by the Travel 

Industry Association, aimed at promoting the power of travel; and  
 
WHEREAS, the goal of National Tourism Week is to enhance the country’s economy 

and inform the public of the cultural and social benefits of travel and tourism. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that we, the members of Lexington County 

Council, do hereby proclaim May 4-12, 2013 as NATIONAL TOURISM WEEK in Lexington 
County and urge our fellow citizens to recognize and participate in this special observance. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ____________________________________ 
William B. Banning, Sr., Chairman Johnny W. Jeffcoat, Vice Chairman 
 
_________________________________ ____________________________________ 
James E. Kinard, Jr.   Frank J. Townsend, III 

 
_________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Kent Collins Debra B. Summers   
 
_________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Bobby C. Keisler K. Brad Matthews  
 
________________________________ 
M. Todd Cullum 
 
ATTEST: 
_________________________________ 
Diana W. Burnett, Clerk   

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 1County Council - National Tourism Week - 04/23/2013
41



Filename: APPOINTMENTS\APPOINTMENT MEMO.word   

 
 

 

Page 1 of 5 
 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 

 
April 23, 2013 

 
 

BRAD MATTHEWS 
• Accommodations Tax Board - William Teague; term expired 12/31/12; not eligible for 

reappointment 
 
 
BILL BANNING 

• Lexington County Health Services District - Billy R. Oswald; term expired 03/10/13; not eligible for 
reappointment; nomination form for Mr. Jeff Salters attached  

 
 
TODD CULLUM 

• Assessment Appeals Board - William Power; term expired 09/21/12; not eligible for reappointment 
• Museum - Carol Metts; term expires 11/01/13; resigned effective 06/27/11 

 
 
 
 
AT LARGE: 

Building Codes Board of Appeals 
• Plumbing - Ashton Shuler - term expired 08/13/11; eligible for reappointment; confirmed desire  

NOT to serve another term 
 
 
Midlands Workforce Development Board 

• SC Department Employment & Workforce (SCDEW) - Felicia Ragland; term expires 06/20/13; no  
   longer employed with SCDEW; pending qualified board nominee     
  

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 5County Council - Boards and Commissions - 04/23/2013
42



LEXINGTON COUNTY COUNCIL 

BOARDICOMMISSION NOMINATION FORM 

Name of Board/Commission: Lexington Medical Center Board of Directors 

Nominee: Jeff Salters 

Address: 237 River Club Rd Lexington. SC 29072 

Employed by: Lexington County School District One 

Address: 100 Tarrar Springs Rd Lexington. SC 29072 

Home Telephone: 803-91 7-1 770 Business Telephone: 803-821-1212 

Mobile Phone: 803-919-1770 Fax Number: 803-821-1210 

Email Address: isalters~,sc.rr.com 

Is nominee aware of board/commission activities and responsibilities? Yes 

Background information (include education, community service activities, previous service on 

county boards/comrnissions or any other boards/commissions on which you are currently serving): 

Submitted by: 3 i I 1 hn n ; n9 
Council District Number: 

Date: 3-ab-13 

Please return completed form to: 
Lexington County Council 

212 South Lake Drive, Suite 601 
Lexington, SC 29072 

Or Fax to 803-785-8101 
For questions call 803-785-8103 

Y:/Council/Boards and Commissions/Nomination Form.201 l.doc 

4/18/2013   Page 2 of 5County Council - Boards and Commissions - 04/23/2013
43



2 3 7  R I V E R  C L B  R D  L E X I N G T O N ,  S C  2 9 0 7 2  
P H O N E  8 0 3 - 9 1 7 - 1 7 7 0  F A X  8 0 3 - 8 2 1  - 1 2 1 0  E - M A I L  J S A L T E R S @ S C . R R . C O M  

J E F F R E Y  S .  S A L T E R S  

PROFILE -- -- - - - - - - 

Accomplished, seasoned professional with proven success in the areas of Information 
Technology management, project management, strategic planning, personnel supervision, 
educational technology, infrastructurelfacility planning and budget forecasting. Strong 
communication skills developed through years of working with collaborative teams. 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE - -. -- . -- .. -. - 

Lexington County School District One - Lexington, SC July 20 10 - Present 
Chief Operations Officer 

Serve on the superintendent's Senior Leadership Team meeting regularly to 
coordinate and plan the ongoing operational efforts of the district. 
Oversee the general operations of the district including Information Technology, 
FacilitiesNew Construction, Maintenance, Student Services, School Attendance 
Zoning, Transportation and Long Range Planning. 

Lexington County School District One - Lexington, SC July 2007 -June 2010 
Chief Information Officer 

Serve on the superintendent's Senior Leadership Team meeting regularly to 
coordinate and plan the ongoing operational efforts of the district. 

Coordinate support, maintenance, installation and development efforts of 22 
administrative and technical personnel supporting 8,000 PCs and over 100 servers. 

Oversee and plan roughly $2 million annual budget and $15 million referendum 
budget for 27 school and district locations. 

Manage multiple mission critical system implementation projects on an ongoing 
basis including new infrastructure rollouts for building projects, software system 
rollouts and web development. 

Meet regularly with cross functional team to assess ever-changing technology 
demands of one of the fastest growing school districts in South Carolina. 

Lexington County School District One - Lexington, SC Feb 1997 - June 2007 
Director of Information/Communication Technologies 

Coordinate support, maintenance, installation and development efforts of 22 
administrative and technical personnel supporting 8,000 PCs and over 100 servers. 

Oversee and plan roughly $2 million annual budget and $10 million referendum 
budget for 25 school and district locations. 

Manage multiple mission critical system implementation projects on an ongoing 
basis including new infrastructure rollouts for building projects, software system 
rollouts and web development. 

Meet regularly with cross functional team to assess ever-changing technology 
demands of one of the fastest growing school districts in South Carolina 

4/18/2013   Page 3 of 5County Council - Boards and Commissions - 04/23/2013
44



JEFFREY S. SALTERS 

Lexington County School District One - Lexington, SC Sept 1995 - Feb 1997 

Assistant Coordinator of Information Technology 
Managed a staff of 2 to 8 people providing direct support for technology related 

problems at the school and district level. 
Provided direct technical support for district financial management system, document 

management system and other key network resources. 

Resource Bancshares Mortgage Group - Columbia, SC May 1994 - Sept 1995 

Local Area Network Administrator 
Designed, organized and managed a local area network consisting of regional and 
nationwide locations 
Supervised evening and night operations team and provided technical assistance as 

needed 
Managed Document Imaging system implementation company wide 

South Carolina Department of Education - Columbia, SC May 1992 - May 1994 
Operations Assistant (Part time) 

Developed procedures manual and documentation for State Needs Assessment 
process 

Systemized the collection of reporting output and directed to 86 South Carolina 
school districts 

Aided in the development of a comprehensive five year strategic planning template 
used by all South Carolina school districts. 

EDUCATION - -- - - -- 

University of South Carolina, Columbia, South Carolina 
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, Management Information Systems - 
Cum Laud Graduate 

Colorado State University, Fort Collins, Colorado 

Master of Business Administration 

LEADERSHIPICOMMUNICATION 

Co-chair District Five Year Strategic Planning Technology Subcommittee 2000,2005 

Co- Chair SACS District Accreditation Continuous Improvement Committee 

Foundation for Rural Education and Development(FRl3D) Board Member 

Lexington County Chamber of Commerce Member 

South Carolina Association of School Administrators Member 

4/18/2013   Page 4 of 5County Council - Boards and Commissions - 04/23/2013
45



JEFFREY S. SALTERS 

South Carolina Association of Athletic Administrators Member 

Lexington County School District One Schools of the Future Task Force Member 

State Department of Education Technology Advisory Council Member 

State Longitudinal Data System Grant Advisory Committee 

State Education and Economic Development Act (EEDA) Information Technology Subcommittee Member 

State Education and Economic Development Act (EEDA) IT Implementation Team Member 

State Technology Directors Roundtable Member - IT sub-committee chair 

National School Interoperability Framework Standard Advisory Group 

Statewide presentations: South Carolina Educational Technology Conference - Myrtle Beach, South Carolina: 

Classrooms of the Future - Building the 21" Century Classroom - Fall 2003 

Working Wonders in a Wireless Environment - Fall 2004 

National Presentations: National School Boards Technology and Learning Conference - Denver, Colorado: 

High Schools for 2 lSt Century Students - Fall 2003 

Learning With Technology: The Elementary Classrooms of the Future - Fall 2004 

Working Wonders in a Wireless Environment - Fall 2004 

Chairman - Staff Parrish Relations Committee - Union United Methodist Church - 2000 - 2002 

Vice Chair - Board of Trustees - Salem United Methodist Church - 2006 - 2009 

Youth Sports Coach - Soccer, Basketball, Baseball - 10 years 

PROFESSIONAL TRAINING/CERTIFICATIONS 

TEE - Tapping Executive Educators - SC Department of Education 

SREB - Creating a High Performance Learning Culture 

EC - Council - Computer Hacking Forensics Investigator (CHFI) 

Cisco Certified Network Associate (CCNA) 

Certified Novell Netware Engineer (CNE) 

Other Microsoft, Novell and Cisco Training courses 

4/18/2013   Page 5 of 5County Council - Boards and Commissions - 04/23/2013
46



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON 
Procurement Services 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 (O) 785-8319 

(F) 785-2240 

 

 

 

DATE: April 16, 2013 

 

TO:  Joseph G. Mergo, III 

  County Administrator 

 

THROUGH: Jeffrey A. Hyde 

  Procurement Manager 

 

FROM: Angela M. Seymour 

  Procurement Officer 

 

SUBJECT: Wastewater Engineering for Chapin Technology Park 

  Economic Development 

              

We received a purchase request from Economic Development for the wastewater engineering cost 

for the Chapin Technology Park. This item will be procured under Lexington County contract 

number PQ13001-08/01/12S from American Engineering Consultants, Inc. 

 

Chuck Whipple, Director of Economic Development has reviewed and recommended this purchase. 

The total cost, including applicable sales tax, is $349,000.00. 

 

Funds will be appropriated in the following accounts: 

 

Account Number               Account Description             Requisition Amount     Account Balance  

 

4521-181100-5AD648 Wastewater Engineering Cost   $161,300.00  $208,620.00 

 

4521-181100-5AD654 Regional Pump Station Engineering $187,700.00  $250,125.00 

 

I concur with the above recommendation and further recommend that this purchase request be placed 

on County Council’s agenda for their next scheduled meeting on April 23, 2013. 

 

copy: Randy Poston, Chief Financial Officer 

 Chuck Whipple, Director of Economic Development 

 

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 1Procurement - Wastewater Engineering for Chapin Technology Park - Economic Development - 04/23/2013
47



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON 
Procurement Services 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 (O) 785-8319 

(F) 785-2240 

 

 

 

DATE: April 16, 2013 

 

TO:  Joseph G. Mergo, III 

  County Administrator 

 

THROUGH: Jeffrey A. Hyde 

  Procurement Manager 

 

FROM: Angela M. Seymour 

  Procurement Officer 

 

SUBJECT: Seventeen (17) ECC Computers 

  911 Communications Center/EOC 

              

We received a purchase request from Public Safety for the seventeen (17) ECC computers. This item 

will be procured under South Carolina State Contract number 5000008961 from Dell. 

 

David Kerr, Director of Public Safety has reviewed and recommended this purchase. The total cost, 

including applicable sales tax, is $48,969.30. 

 

Funds will be appropriated in the following accounts: 

 

Account Number              Account Description             Requisition Amount     Account Balance  

 

4507-131302-5AD740 (8) ECC Computers (CAD)   $23,044.38 $23,045.00 

 

4507-131303-5AD740 (9) ECC Computers (CAD)  $25,924.92 $25,925.00 

 

I concur with the above recommendation and further recommend that this purchase request be placed 

on County Council’s agenda for their next scheduled meeting on April 23, 2013. 

 

copy: Randy Poston, Chief Financial Officer 

David Kerr, Director of Public Safety 

 Lynn Sturkie, Information Services Manager  

 

 

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 1Procurement - Seventeen (17) ECC Computers - 911 Communications Center/EOC - 04/23/2013
48



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON 
Procurement Services 

MEMORANDUM 
(O) 785-8166 

(F) 785-2240 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  April 10, 2013 
 

TO:  Joe G. Mergo, III 
  County Administrator 
 

THROUGH: Jeffrey A. Hyde 

  Procurement Manager 
 

FROM: Kay Keisler 

  Procurement Officer 
   

SUBJECT: Mobile Data Terminals with Mounts  

  Public Safety/EMS 
 

We received a purchase request from Public Safety/EMS to purchase eight (8) mobile workstations to 

include all accessories, warranties, and installation/removal.  These mobile workstations will be 

purchased through the appropriate South Carolina state contract (#5000011320) from Motorola, Inc.   

 

Chief T. Brian Hood, EMS Director has reviewed and recommended this purchase.  The total cost, 

including applicable sales tax, is $45,473.02.  
 

Funds are appropriated in the following account: 

 

Account Number                  Account Description             Requisition Amount    Account Balance 

1000-131400-5AD720 Mobile Data Terminals            $45,473.02 $47,092.00 

 with Mounts 
 

I concur with the above recommendation and further recommend that this purchase be placed on County 

Council’s agenda for their next scheduled meeting on April 23, 2013. 
 

copy:  Randy Poston, Chief Financial Officer 

  David Kerr, Public Safety Director 

 Chief T. Brian Hood, EMS Director 

  

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 1Procurement - Mobile Data Terminals with Mounts - Public Safety/EMS - 04/23/2013
49



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON 
Procurement Services 
 

MEMORANDUM 

(O) 785-8166 

(F) 785-2240 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  April 12, 2013 

 

TO:  Joe Mergo III 

  County Administrator 

 

THROUGH: Jeffrey A. Hyde 

  Procurement Manager 

 

FROM: Angela M. Seymour 

  Procurement Officer 

 

SUBJECT: 2013 Asphalt Maintenance Program 

  C13039-04/03/13S    

Public Works  
Competitive bids were solicited and advertised for improvements to the 2013 Asphalt Maintenance 

Program. This project consists of milling, full depth patching, and hot mix asphalt resurfacing of various 

Lexington County maintained roads. A mandatory pre-bid meeting was held on March 13, 2013 in which 

six (6) contractors were represented. We received four (4) responsive bids on April 3, 2013 (see attached 

Bid Tabulation). 

 

The bids were evaluated by Wrenn Barrett, Director of Public Works; J. Randy Edwards, County 

Engineer; and Angela M. Seymour, Procurement Officer.  It is our recommendation to award this project 

to Sloan Construction Company as the lowest bidder for tasks (1) and (2) for a total amount, including all 

applicable taxes, of $688,898.70. 
 

County funds are appropriated in the following accounts: 

 

  Account Number   Account Description  Account Balance  Requisition Amount 

2700-121300-530001     Road Resurfacing                   $927,121.47    $613,953.20  

 

2700-121300-530003       Line Striping                      $89,502.00     $74,945.50  
 

I concur with the above recommendation and further recommend that this bid be placed on County 

Council’s agenda for their next scheduled meeting on April 23, 2013. 

 

copy: Randy Poston, Chief Financial Officer 

 Wrenn Barrett, Director of Public Works 

 J. Randy Edwards, County Engineer 

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 4Procurement - 2013 Asphalt Maintenance Program - Public Works - 04/23/2013
50



BID # : C13039-04/03/13S

2013 Asphalt Maintenance Program

Item Qty U/M Description Unit Total Total Cost Unit Total Total Cost Unit Total Total Cost Unit Total Total Cost

401.1 2285 SY Milling of Existing Asphalt 6.20$           14,167.00$       3.15$           7,197.75$         5.35$           12,224.75$       1.50$           3,427.50$         

401.2 2000 TON Full Depth Asphalt Patch 91.25$         182,500.00$     117.90$       235,800.00$     115.00$       230,000.00$     125.00$       250,000.00$     

401.3 4153 TON

Hot Mix Asphalt Surface Course Type 

C 81.40$         338,054.20$     79.80$         331,409.40$     90.00$         373,770.00$     95.00$         394,535.00$     

401.4 25 CY Contingent Aggregate Base Patch 75.00$         1,875.00$         136.90$       3,422.50$         91.00$         2,275.00$         125.00$       3,125.00$         

401.5 120 TON

Contingent Hot Mix Asphalt Wedge & 

Level 116.00$       13,920.00$       128.90$       15,468.00$       130.00$       15,600.00$       125.00$       15,000.00$       

601 1 LS Maintenance of Traffic 13,880.00$  13,880.00$       11,100.00$  11,100.00$       19,900.00$  19,900.00$       82,500.00$  82,500.00$       

720 850 LF

Curb & Gutter Removal and 

Replacement 49.00$         41,650.00$       29.50$         25,075.00$       24.25$         20,612.50$       55.00$         46,750.00$       

720.1 60 LF Curb & Gutter Removal and Reset 87.00$         5,220.00$         40.40$         2,424.00$         25.65$         1,539.00$         55.00$         3,300.00$         

808.1 1 EA Adjust Manhole Cover 1,087.00$    1,087.00$         300.00$       300.00$            130.00$       130.00$            600.00$       600.00$            

808.2 1 EA Contingent Adjust Utility Valve Box 1,600.00$    1,600.00$         1,800.00$    1,800.00$         130.00$       130.00$            600.00$       600.00$            

Total for Task 1 613,953.20$     633,996.65$     676,181.25$     799,837.50$     

Task 2

625.1 80 LF 24” White Fast Dry Stop Bar 3.26$           260.80$            3.00$           240.00$            7.35$           588.00$            3.00$           240.00$            

625.2 5000 LF

4” White Solid Line Fast Dry 

Pavement Marking 0.08$           400.00$            0.07$           350.00$            0.08$           400.00$            0.12$           600.00$            

625.3 31500 LF

4” Yellow Solid Line Fast Dry 

Pavement Marking 0.08$           2,520.00$         0.07$           2,205.00$         0.08$           2,520.00$         0.12$           3,780.00$         

627.1 460 LF 24” White Thermoplastic Stop Bar 6.52$           2,999.20$         6.00$           2,760.00$         12.60$         5,796.00$         4.50$           2,070.00$         

627.2 58000 LF

4” White Solid Line Thermoplastic 

Pavement Marking 0.38$           22,040.00$       0.35$           20,300.00$       0.36$           20,880.00$       0.21$           12,180.00$       

627.3 114000 LF

4” Yellow Solid Line Thermoplastic 

Pavement Marking 0.38$           43,320.00$       0.35$           39,900.00$       0.36$           41,040.00$       0.21$           23,940.00$       

627.4 530 LF

4” White Dashed Line Thermoplastic 

Pavement Marking 1.09$           577.70$            1.00$           530.00$            0.55$           291.50$            0.90$           477.00$            

627.5 100 LF

4” Yellow Dashed Line Thermoplastic 

Pavement Marking 1.09$           109.00$            1.00$           100.00$            0.55$           55.00$              2.00$           200.00$            

627.6 9 EA White Thermoplastic Arrow (Single) 86.00$         774.00$            80.00$         720.00$            68.00$         612.00$            100.00$       900.00$            

630 715 EA Raised Pavement Marker 2.72$           1,944.80$         4.00$           2,860.00$         5.25$           3,753.75$         4.00$           2,860.00$         

Total for Task 2 74,945.50$       69,965.00$       75,936.25$       47,247.00$       

Total for Task 1 & 2 688,898.70$     703,961.65$     752,117.50$     847,084.50$     

Bids Received: April 3, 2013 @ 3:00 PM E.S.T.

** Coogler Construction, Inc. submitted a "no bid" response due to their schedule would not permit them to perform.

** Trussell Brothers Consturction Company, Inc. submitted a "no bid" response due they do not perform this type of work.

Angela M. Seymour

Procurement Officer

Sloan Construction Company C.R. Jackson, Inc.Lane Construction Boggs Paving, Inc.

County of Lexington

Bid Tabulation

4/18/2013   Page 2 of 4Procurement - 2013 Asphalt Maintenance Program - Public Works - 04/23/2013
51



___________440 BALL PARK ROAD, LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA  29072  803-785-8201__________ 

 

                COUNTY OF LEXINGTON                  

                        PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

                                      ENGINEERING 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 

 

DATE: April 9, 2013  

 

TO: Angela Seymour  

 

FROM: Randy Edwards  

 

RE: Recommendation of Award for 2013 Asphalt Maintenance Program 

 

CC: Wrenn Barrett, Joey Derby (e-mail) 

 

 

Lexington County Public Works hereby acknowledges receipt of the bid tabulation for the 2013 

Asphalt Maintenance Program and makes recommendation to award the contract to the low bidder, 

Sloan Construction Company, in the amount of $688,898.70.  Currently, account # 2700-121300-

530001 has $927,121.47 available for Task 1 of this project and account # 2700-121300-530003 has 

$89,502.00 available for Task 2 of this project. 

 

Task 1 (Asphalt/Curbing) - $613,953.20 

Task 2 (Line Striping) - $74,945.50 

Total Base Bid - $688,898.70 

 

Thank you for your assistance with this bid. 

 

 

4/18/2013   Page 3 of 4Procurement - 2013 Asphalt Maintenance Program - Public Works - 04/23/2013
52



Total Estimated Cost: $689,000STATUS

CONSTRUCTION $689

From:

To:

Funding:

Length: MilesN/A

2014

3rd Qtr1st Qtr 2nd Qtr

Council District # / Member:

Project Description:

Contractor:NTP:

Resurfacing, Full Depth Patching, Curb Repair, Line Striping for various roads in Lexington County

Bid:

4th Qtr2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

Town / Community:

LF =

Project #: $688,898.00

SCHEDULE / COSTS      

$ 1000

2013

1st Qtr

PE / DESIGN

R/W & UTILITIES

2013 Asphalt Maintenance Program 
 
4/23/13 - Council Award Date 
5/6/13 - Anticipated NTP 
   
Areas of work include Quail Valley, Quail Hollow, Founders Rd, Jamestowne Ct,  Erica Ct, Broom Straw Rd, Northshore Dr, 
Banbury Rd 
 
 

2013 ASPHALT MAINT. Road Maintenace Proj.

C-Funds

N/ALexington County

5 / 6 /2013 6

Project Summary Sheet-Lexington County Public Works Department  440 Ball Park Road Lexington, SC 29072-2240 803-785-

8201

4/18/2013   Page 4 of 4Procurement - 2013 Asphalt Maintenance Program - Public Works - 04/23/2013
53



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON 
Procurement Services 

MEMORANDUM 
(O) 785-8166 

(F) 785-2240 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  April 10, 2013 
 

TO:  Joe G. Mergo, III 
  County Administrator 
 

THROUGH: Jeffrey A. Hyde 

  Procurement Manager 
 

FROM: Kay Keisler 

  Procurement Officer 
   

SUBJECT: 4X4 Sports Utility Vehicle (SUV) with Winch  

  Public Works/Administration 
 

We received a purchase request from Public Works/Administration to purchase a Ford Explorer with a 

winch.  This vehicle will be purchased through the appropriate South Carolina state contract 

(#4400005811) from Vic Bailey Ford.  

 

Bill Kazmierczak, Fleet Manager has reviewed and approved this procurement in accordance with the 

Fleet Management Policy.  The total cost, including applicable sales tax, is $26,207.00.  
 

Funds are appropriated in the following account: 

 

Account Number                  Account Description             Requisition Amount    Account Balance 

1000-121100-5AD711 SUV (4X4) with Winch  $26,207.00 $26,750.00 
 

I concur with the above recommendation and further recommend that this purchase be placed on County 

Council’s agenda for their next scheduled meeting on April 23, 2013. 
 

copy:  Randy Poston, Chief Financial Officer 

  Wrenn Barrett, Director of Public Works 

 Bill Kazmierczak, Fleet Manager 

  

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 1Procurement - 4X4 Sports Utility Vehicle (SUV) with Winch - Public Works/Administration - 04/23/2013
54



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON 
Procurement Services 
 

MEMORANDUM 

(O) 785-8319 

(F) 785-2240 

 
 

 

 

DATE:  April 12, 2013 

 

TO:  Joe G. Mergo, III 

  County Administrator 

 

THROUGH: Jeffrey A. Hyde 

  Procurement Manager 

 

FROM: Angela M. Seymour 

  Procurement Officer 

 

SUBJECT: Chariot Street Improvements Project 

  B13016-04/10/13S 

Public Works  
Competitive bids were solicited and advertised for improvements to Chariot Street. This project consists 

of providing all materials, equipment, and labor to provide grading, associated drainage improvements, 

and placing asphalt pavement to the unpaved road surface of 1,200 linear feet of a Lexington County 

maintained road. A mandatory pre-bid meeting was held on March 27, 2013 in which eight (8) vendors 

were represented. The County received five (5) responsive bids on April 10, 2013 (see attached Bid 

Tabulation). 

 

The bids were evaluated by Wrenn Barrett, Director of Public Works; J. Randy Edwards, County 

Engineer; and Angela M. Seymour, Procurement Officer.  It is our recommendation to award this project 

to R & T Grading, Inc. as the lowest bidder for a total amount, including all applicable taxes, of 

$141,103.05. 

 

County funds are appropriated in the following account: 

 

   Account Number   Account Description  Account Balance  Requisition Amount 

2700-121301-5R0149   Chariot Street          $145,000.00    $141,103.05 

 

I concur with the above recommendation and further recommend that this bid be placed on County 

Council’s agenda for their next scheduled meeting on April 23, 2013. 

 

copy: Randy Poston, Chief Financial Officer 

 Wrenn Barrett, Director of Public Works 

 J. Randy Edwards, County Engineer 

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 7Procurement - Chariot Street Improvements Project - Public Works - 04/23/2013
55



BID # :  B13016-04/10/13S

Chariot Street Improvements Project

Pay Item

Item No. Qty U/M Description Unit Total Total Cost Unit Total Total Cost

1 203.1 191 CY 2" Organic Topsoil 16.86$                3,220.26$              25.00$                4,775.00$               

2 203.2 20 CY

Contingent Unsuitable Material 

Excavation 40.73$                814.60$                 10.00$                200.00$                  

3 203.3 290 CY Unclassified Excavation 30.00$                8,700.00$              50.00$                14,500.00$             

4 208.1 4199 SY Fine Grading 1.75$                  7,348.25$              3.00$                  12,597.00$             

5 305.1 4199 SY

Graded Aggregate Base Course (6" 

Uniform) 9.09$                  38,168.91$            12.00$                50,388.00$             

6 401.3 505 TN

Hot Mix Asphalt Surface Course 

Type CM 86.63$                43,748.15$            90.00$                45,450.00$             

7 401.6 30 TN

Contingent Hot Mix Asphalt 

Intermediate Course 86.63$                2,598.90$              90.00$                2,700.00$               

8 502.2 20 TN Contingent Maintenance Stone 29.22$                584.40$                 25.00$                500.00$                  

9 601 1 LS Maintenance of Traffic 37,181.00$         37,181.00$            25,000.00$         25,000.00$             

10 625.3 2576 LF

Contingent 4" Yellow Solid Line 

Fast Dry Payment Marking 0.41$                  1,056.16$              0.50$                  1,288.00$               

11 714.1 152 LF 15" Reinforced Concrete Pipe 31.70$                4,818.40$              30.00$                4,560.00$               

12 714.2 42 LF 18" Reinforced Concrete Pipe 33.83$                1,420.86$              40.00$                1,680.00$               

13 714.3 300 LF 24" Perforated HDPE Pipe 51.55$                15,465.00$            50.00$                15,000.00$             

14 719.2 3 EA Drop Inlet 1,930.90$           5,792.70$              2,000.00$           6,000.00$               

15 720 1 LS Concrete Work 6,848.15$           6,848.15$              15,000.00$         15,000.00$             

16 802 100 LF Contingent Pipe Underdrain 17.75$                1,775.00$              10.00$                1,000.00$               

17 804.1 3 TN Rip Rap (Class B) 130.74$              392.22$                 100.00$              300.00$                  

18 810 0.71 AC Permanent Vegetation 1,774.68$           1,260.02$              2,000.00$           1,420.00$               

19 815 1 LS Erosion Control Mantenance 5,403.67$           5,403.67$              5,000.00$           5,000.00$               

TOTAL BID 186,596.65$          207,358.00$           

Pay Item

Item No. Qty U/M Description Unit Total Total Cost Unit Total Total Cost

1 203.1 191 CY 2" Organic Topsoil 22.00$                4,202.00$              18.00$                3,438.00$               

2 203.2 20 CY

Contingent Unsuitable Material 

Excavation 5.00$                  100.00$                 30.00$                600.00$                  

3 203.3 290 CY Unclassified Excavation 20.00$                5,800.00$              12.00$                3,480.00$               

4 208.1 4199 SY Fine Grading 2.50$                  10,497.50$            2.00$                  8,398.00$               

5 305.1 4199 SY

Graded Aggregate Base Course (6" 

Uniform) 9.50$                  39,890.50$            8.50$                  35,691.50$             

6 401.3 505 TN

Hot Mix Asphalt Surface Course 

Type CM 100.00$              50,500.00$            91.50$                46,207.50$             

7 401.6 30 TN

Contingent Hot Mix Asphalt 

Intermediate Course 100.00$              3,000.00$              102.25$              3,067.50$               

8 502.2 20 TN Contingent Maintenance Stone 22.00$                440.00$                 43.00$                860.00$                  

9 601 1 LS Maintenance of Traffic 1,000.00$           1,000.00$              27,072.50$         27,072.50$             

10 625.3 2576 LF

Contingent 4" Yellow Solid Line 

Fast Dry Payment Marking 0.25$                  644.00$                 0.75$                  1,932.00$               

11 714.1 152 LF 15" Reinforced Concrete Pipe 25.00$                3,800.00$              24.75$                3,762.00$               

12 714.2 42 LF 18" Reinforced Concrete Pipe 30.00$                1,260.00$              27.00$                1,134.00$               

13 714.3 300 LF 24" Perforated HDPE Pipe 65.00$                19,500.00$            43.00$                12,900.00$             

14 719.2 3 EA Drop Inlet 2,000.00$           6,000.00$              1,625.00$           4,875.00$               

15 720 1 LS Concrete Work 3,000.00$           3,000.00$              5,500.00$           5,500.00$               

16 802 100 LF Contingent Pipe Underdrain 10.00$                1,000.00$              25.00$                2,500.00$               

17 804.1 3 TN Rip Rap (Class B) 75.00$                225.00$                 55.00$                165.00$                  

18 810 0.71 AC Permanent Vegetation 2,000.00$           1,420.00$              2,700.00$           1,917.00$               

19 815 1 LS Erosion Control Mantenance 2,000.00$           2,000.00$              10,500.00$         10,500.00$             

TOTAL BID 154,279.00$          174,000.00$           

County of Lexington

Bid Tabulation

J. C. Wilkie Construction Cherokee, Inc.

 Walter L. Hunter Const. Co., Inc. Coogler Construction

4/18/2013   Page 2 of 7Procurement - Chariot Street Improvements Project - Public Works - 04/23/2013
56



Pay Item

Item No. Qty U/M Description Unit Total Total Cost

1 203.1 191 CY 2" Organic Topsoil 15.00$                2,865.00$              

2 203.2 20 CY

Contingent Unsuitable Material 

Excavation 8.00$                  160.00$                 

3 203.3 290 CY Unclassified Excavation 5.00$                  1,450.00$              

4 208.1 4199 SY Fine Grading 1.10$                  4,618.90$              

5 305.1 4199 SY

Graded Aggregate Base Course (6" 

Uniform) 7.25$                  30,442.75$            

6 401.3 505 TN

Hot Mix Asphalt Surface Course 

Type CM 85.60$                43,228.00$            

7 401.6 30 TN

Contingent Hot Mix Asphalt 

Intermediate Course 85.60$                2,568.00$              

8 502.2 20 TN Contingent Maintenance Stone 28.00$                560.00$                 

9 601 1 LS Maintenance of Traffic 3,500.00$           3,500.00$              

10 625.3 2576 LF

Contingent 4" Yellow Solid Line 

Fast Dry Payment Marking 0.40$                  1,030.40$              

11 714.1 152 LF 15" Reinforced Concrete Pipe 17.00$                2,584.00$              

12 714.2 42 LF 18" Reinforced Concrete Pipe 20.00$                840.00$                 

13 714.3 300 LF 24" Perforated HDPE Pipe 43.00$                12,900.00$            

14 719.2 3 EA Drop Inlet 2,030.00$           6,090.00$              

15 720 1 LS Concrete Work 17,500.00$         17,500.00$            

16 802 100 LF Contingent Pipe Underdrain 21.00$                2,100.00$              

17 804.1 3 TN Rip Rap (Class B) 45.00$                135.00$                 

18 810 0.71 AC Permanent Vegetation 2,100.00$           1,491.00$              

19 815 1 LS Erosion Control Mantenance 7,040.00$           7,040.00$              

TOTAL BID 141,103.05$          

** C. R. Jackson Inc. submitted a "NO BID" response due to a scheduling conflict.

Bids Received: April 11, 2013 @ 1:00 PM E.S.T.

Angela M. Seymour

Procurement Officer

R & T Grading Inc.

4/18/2013   Page 3 of 7Procurement - Chariot Street Improvements Project - Public Works - 04/23/2013
57



4/18/2013   Page 4 of 7Procurement - Chariot Street Improvements Project - Public Works - 04/23/2013
58



___________440 BALL PARK ROAD, LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA  29072  803-785-8201__________ 

 

                COUNTY OF LEXINGTON                  

                        PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

                                      ENGINEERING 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 

 

DATE: April 12, 2013  

 

TO: Angela Seymour  

 

FROM: Randy Edwards  

 

RE: Recommendation of Award for Chariot Street Improvements Project 

 

CC: Wrenn Barrett, Joey Derby (e-mail) 

 

 

Lexington County Public Works hereby acknowledges receipt of the bid tabulation for Chariot Street 

Improvements Project and makes recommendation to award the contract to the low bidder, R & T 

Grading, Inc., in the amount of $141,103.05.  Currently, account # 2700-121301-5R0149 has 

$123,000.00 available for this project with the remaining $18,103.05 funds required being transferred 

(ABT) from the account # 2700-121301-53990, which has $271,410 funds available. 

 

Thank you for your assistance with this bid. 

 

 

4/18/2013   Page 5 of 7Procurement - Chariot Street Improvements Project - Public Works - 04/23/2013
59



Town / Community:

LF =

Project #: $141,103.05

SCHEDULE / COSTS      

$ 1000

2013

1st Qtr

PE / DESIGN

R/W & UTILITIES

4th Qtr

$0

2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

$0

Council District # / Member:

R & T Grading

Project Description:

Contractor:NTP: Bid:

Miles1200 0.23

2014

3rd Qtr1st Qtr 2nd Qtr

Augusta Hwy (US 1)From:

To: Hendrix St. (S-32-43)

Funding:

Length:

Total Estimated Cost: $141,000STATUS

CONSTRUCTION $141

4/11/13- Bid Opening 
 
5/6/13- Anticipated NTP 
 
Lex Co Design, Lex Co R/W 
24' pavement width, valley gutter/ditch section to underground retention 

CHARIOT STREET Road Paving Improvement

C-Funds

3 / Kenneth CollinsLexington

5 / 6 /2013 6

Project Summary Sheet-Lexington County Public Works Department  440 Ball Park Road Lexington, SC 29072-2240 803-785-

8201

4/18/2013   Page 6 of 7Procurement - Chariot Street Improvements Project - Public Works - 04/23/2013
60



Road Paving Improvement

C-Funds

3 / Kenneth Collins

Project Summary Sheet-Lexington County Public Works Department  440 Ball Park Road Lexington, SC 29072-2240 803-785-

8201

4/18/2013   Page 7 of 7Procurement - Chariot Street Improvements Project - Public Works - 04/23/2013
61



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON 
Procurement Services 

MEMORANDUM 
(O) 785-8166 

(F) 785-2240 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  April 10, 2013 
 

TO:  Joe G. Mergo, III 

  County Administrator 
 

THROUGH: Jeffrey A. Hyde 

  Procurement Manager 
 

FROM: Angela M. Seymour 

  Procurement Officer 
   

SUBJECT: One (1) Utility Truck with Equipment and Accessories  

  Sheriff’s Department 
 

We received several purchase requisitions from the Sheriff’s Department to purchase a Chevrolet 

Silverado with 4-wheel drive, equipment and additional accessories. The requested vehicle is being 

purchased through the appropriate South Carolina state contract (#4400005821) and will require the 

purchase and installation of emergency equipment and accessories. These additional items will be 

purchased from various vendors through the Lexington County procurement process.  The vehicle has 

been recommended and approved in accordance with the Fleet Management Policy by Bill Kazmierczak, 

Fleet Manager. 
 

The total cost including applicable sales tax for the vehicle is $41,669.08. It is recommended that the 

awards be made to multiple vendors as follows: 

Love Chevrolet                            $37,782.00 

Lee Transport Equipment, Inc.       $1,845.75 

Dana Safety Supply      $1,466.33 

West Chatham Warning Devices   $575.00 
 

Funds are appropriated in the following account: 

   Account Number                 Account Description             Requisition Amount     Account Balance 

2485-151200-5AD728 (1) Utility Truck with Equipment   $41,669.08  $42,814.00 

 and Accessories 
 

I concur with the above recommendation and further recommend that this purchase be placed on County 

Council’s agenda for their next scheduled meeting on April 23, 2013. 
 

copy:  Randy Poston, Chief Financial Officer 

 Chief Keith Kirchner, Assistant Sheriff 

 Colonel Alan Paavel, Sheriff’s Department 

 Sylvia Dillon, Sheriff’s Department 

 Bill Kazmierczak, Fleet Services Manager  

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 1Procurement - One (1) Utility Truck with Equipment and Accessories - Sheriff's Department - 04/23/2013
62



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON 

Procurement Services 

 

MEMORANDUM 

(O) 785-8319 

(F) 785-2240 

DATE:  April 12, 2013 
 

TO:  Joe G. Mergo, II 

  County Administrator 
 

THROUGH: Jeffrey A. Hyde 

  Procurement Manager 
 

FROM: Angela M. Seymour 

  Procurement Officer 
 

SUBJECT: One (1) Articulating Off Road Dump Truck (Addition) 

  B12005-08/18/11S 

Solid Waste Management 
 

Competitive bids were solicited and advertised for one (1) additional articulating off road dump truck for 

Solid Waste Management.  
 

The bids were evaluated by Dave Eger, Director of Solid Waste Management and Angela M. Seymour, 

Procurement Officer.  It is our recommendation to award this project to the lowest responsive bidder 

ASC Construction Equipment for the total amount, including option 1 of a “Fire Suppression System” 

and taxes, of $351,697.73. The department has decided not to exercise the purchase of the bid option for 

the “Auto Lubrication System”. 
 

The first fiscal year cost of the Total Maintenance and Repair (TM&R) contract will be $10,296.60.  The 

cost of the 5 year/7,500 hour TM&R contract ($10,296.60 per fiscal year) is $51,483.00.  The total cost 

including equipment, option 1, the first year TM&R contract, and applicable sales tax is $361,994.33. An 

additional vehicle may be purchased in the 2014 fiscal year under the terms and conditions of this bid. 
 

Pending an Account Balance Transfer (ABT), County funds will be appropriated in the following 

accounts: 
 

   Account Number     Account Description         Account Balance      Requisition Amount 

5700-121204-5AD276     (1) 25-Ton Off Road Dump Truck          $351,690.00          $351,697.73 
 

5700-121204-520100    Total Maintenance and Repair                      $29,351.35     $10,296.60 

     (TM&R)  Contract Maintenance      
 

I concur with the above recommendation and further recommend that this bid be placed on County 

Council’s agenda for their next scheduled meeting on April 23, 2013. 
 

copy: Randy Poston, Chief Financial Officer 

 Dave Eger, Director of Solid Waste Management 

 William Kazmierczak, Fleet Manager 

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 2Procurement - One (1) Articulating Off Road Dump Truck (Addition) - Solid Waste Management - 04/23/2013
63



BID # :   B13041-04/05/13S
Articulating Off Road Dump Truck

Item Qty U/M Description Unit Total Total Cost Unit Total Total Cost

1 1 Each

Articulating Off Road Dump 
Trucks in accordance with bid 
specifications 316,900.00$         316,900.00$             

2 1 Each Cost of Diagnostic Software $0.00 $0.00
Subtotal 316,900.00$             

Taxes 22,183.00$               
Total 339,083.00$             

EQUIPMENT OPTIONS:
1 1 Each Fire Suppression System 11,789.47$           11,789.47$               
2 1 Each Auto Lubrication System 7,657.89$             7,657.89$                 

Subtotal 19,447.36$               
Taxes 1,361.32$                 
Total 20,808.68$               

OPTIONS:
1A 1 Each TM & R Year One (1) $10,296.60 10,296.60$               
1B 1 Each TM & R Year Two (2) $10,296.60 10,296.60$               
1C 1 Each TM & R Year Three (3) $10,296.60 10,296.60$               
1D 1 Each TM & R Year Four (4) $10,296.60 10,296.60$               
1E 1 Each TM & R Year Five (5) $10,296.60 10,296.60$               

2 1 Each
Buy Back Guarantee (7500 
Hours/60 Months) 165,750.00$         165,750.00$             

3 1 Each
Buy Back Guarantee (8500 
Hours/72 Months) 125,000.00$         125,000.00$             

4 1 Each
Buy Back Guarantee (9500 
Hours/84 Months) 100,000.00$         100,000.00$             

OPTIONAL 2ND VEHICLE:

1 1 Each
Additional Articulating Off 
Road Dump Truck 316,900.00$         316,900.00$             

2 1 Each Fire Suppression System 11,789.47$           11,789.47$               
3 1 Each Auto Lubrication System 7,657.89$             7,657.89$                 

Bids Received: April 5, 2013 @ 3:00 PM E.S.T.

Angela Seymour
Procurement Officer

County of Lexington

Bid Tabulation

ASC Construction Equipment Blanchard Manchinery

 "Non-Responsive"
 "Non-Responsive"

 "Non-Responsive"

** Flint Equipment Company responded with a "no bid" response.

 "Non-Responsive"
 "Non-Responsive"
 "Non-Responsive"
 "Non-Responsive"
 "Non-Responsive"

 "Non-Responsive"
 "Non-Responsive"

 "Non-Responsive"
 "Non-Responsive"

 "Non-Responsive"
 "Non-Responsive"

 "Non-Responsive"

** Blanchard Machinery's submission is deemed "Non Responsive". Vendor did not acknowledge amendment 1 of the bid 
document which changed the bidder's schedule.

 "Non-Responsive"

 "Non-Responsive"

 "Non-Responsive"

 "Non-Responsive"

 "Non-Responsive"
 "Non-Responsive"

4/18/2013   Page 2 of 2

Procurement - One (1) Articulating Off Road Dump Truck (Addition) - Solid Waste Management - 04/23/2013

64



ORDINANCE NO. 13-01 
 
  AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 95-12 AS 

AMENDED BY SUBSEQUENT ORDINANCES RELATING 
TO THE JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL PARK OF 
LEXINGTON AND NEWBERRY COUNTIES SO AS TO 
ENLARGE THE PARK SO AS TO INCLUDE THE 
LEXINGTON COUNTY TECHNOLOGY PARK PROPERTY. 

 
 WHEREAS, Lexington County and Newberry County entered into an agreement for the 
development of a Joint County Park dated July 28, 1998; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3 of the Park Agreement, the boundaries of the park 
created therein (the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the respective County 
Councils of Lexington County and Newberry County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the expansion of the Park shall include a certain tracts of real estate described 
Exhibit A attached to this Ordinance (as such description may be hereafter refined) (“Property”). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE be it ordained by Lexington County Council that:  
 
  (1) The Park Agreement is hereby and shall be amended to include the Property and 
that the Chairman of Lexington County Council is hereby authorized to execute and deliver any 
desired amendments to the Park Agreement necessary to accomplish the within enlargement. 
 
 
 DONE in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of ______________, 2013.  
 
 LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
 
(SEAL) By: ______________________________________ 
 William B. Banning, Sr., Chairman of County Council 
 Lexington County, South Carolina    
ATTEST: 
 
By:__________________________ 
Diana W. Burnett, Clerk to County Council 
Lexington County, South Carolina 
 
First Reading: __________________    
Second Reading: ________________ 
Public Hearing: _________________ 
Third Reading: _________________ 

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 4County Council - Ordinance 13-01 - An Ord. to Amend Ord. 95-12 as Amended by Subsequent Ordinances Relating to the Joint...
65



 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
     ) 
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON  ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Lexington County, South Carolina, do 
hereby certify that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was 
given reading, and received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of 
_____________, 2013, ____________, 2013 and ____________, 2013, at which meetings a 
quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and an original of which ordinance 
is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
      By:_______________________________________ 
      Diana W. Burnett, Clerk to County Council 
      Lexington County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
Dated:  ______________, 2013 

4/18/2013   Page 2 of 4County Council - Ordinance 13-01 - An Ord. to Amend Ord. 95-12 as Amended by Subsequent Ordinances Relating to the Joint...
66



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )     AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR 
     )     DEVELOPMENT OF JOINT COUNTY 
COUNTY OF NEWBERRY )     INDUSTRIAL PARK DATED JULY 28, 1998 
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON )     ADDING ADDITIONAL PROPERTY OF 
           LEXINGTON COUNTY TECHNOLOGY PARK 
 
 
THIS AMENDMENT ENTERED INTO AS OF THE ____ DAY OF _______________, 
2012 BETWEEN LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND NEWBERRY 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA. 
 
 By authority of Ordinance No.     13-01      adopted by the County Council of Lexington 
County on __________, 2013 and Ordinance No. ___________ adopted by the County Council 
of Newberry County on ___________, 2013, for value received, Lexington County and 
Newberry County hereby agree that the property described in Schedule I, attached hereto, which 
is located in Lexington County, is hereby added to and shall be deemed to be a part of Exhibit A 
to the Agreement for Development of Joint County Industrial Park between Lexington County 
and Newberry County dated as of July 28, 1998, as amended (the “Agreement”).  All other terms 
and provisions of said Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 WITNESS our hands and seals, effective as of the day first above written. 
 
       LEXINGTON COUNTY, 
       SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
       Signature: ________________________  
(SEAL)      Name: ___________________________  
ATTEST:      Title:  Chairman of County Council 
 
Signature:  __________________________ 
Name:  _____________________________  
Title:  Clerk to County Council 
 
 
       NEWBERRY COUNTY, 
       SOUTH CAROLINA 
       
       Signature: ________________________  
(SEAL)      Name: ___________________________  
ATTEST:      Title:  Chairman of County Council 
 
Signature:  __________________________ 
Name:  _____________________________  
Title:  Clerk to County Council 
 

4/18/2013   Page 3 of 4County Council - Ordinance 13-01 - An Ord. to Amend Ord. 95-12 as Amended by Subsequent Ordinances Relating to the Joint...
67



Ordinance Exhibit A/Agreement Schedule 1 
 

 
All that certain piece, parcel, lot or tract of land, with improvements thereon, 
situate, lying and being in the County of Lexington, State of South Carolina, 
located off Ellett Road, being shown as 8.75 acres, more or less on that plat 
prepared for Lexington County by Survey One, LLC dated May 14, 2012, 
revised June 25, 2012 and recorded August 8, 2012 in the Office of the 
Register of Deeds for Lexington County in Plat Book 15684 at Page 343. 
 
 
All that certain piece, parcel and lot of land, situate, lying and being Two (2) 
miles Northeast of the Town of Chapin, County of Lexington, State of South 
Carolina, and being shown as 65.98 Acres on that plat prepared for 
Lexington County by Survey One, LLC dated May 14, 2012, revised June 
25, 2012 and recorded August 8, 2012 in the Office of the Register of Deeds 
for Lexington County in Plat Book 15684 at page 341. 
 
 
All that certain piece, parcel or tract of land, situate, lying and being in the 
County of Lexington, State of South Carolina, containing approximately 
21.10 acres, more or less, and being more accurately depicted on a survey 
for Lexington County by Survey One, LLC dated May 14, 2012, revised 
June 25, 2012 and recorded August 8, 2012 in the Office of the Register of 
Deeds for Lexington County in Plat Book 15684 at Page 342. 
 
 
All that certain piece, parcel, lot or tract of land, with improvements thereon, 
situate, lying and being in the County of Lexington, State of South Carolina.  
Being located on the Southern side of Interstate I-26, and being shown as 
65.50 Acres on that plat prepared for Lexington County by Survey One, 
LLC dated May 14, 2012, revised June 25, 2012 and recorded August 8, 
2012 in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Lexington County in Plat 
Book 15684 at Page 344. 
 
 
All of which now are shown as Tax Map Number:  000300-04-051. 
 
 
 

4/18/2013   Page 4 of 4County Council - Ordinance 13-01 - An Ord. to Amend Ord. 95-12 as Amended by Subsequent Ordinances Relating to the Joint...
68



 1

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 13-02 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 12-08 AUTHORIZING THE 
CONVEYANCE OF 8.90 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, TO  

THE TOWN OF LEXINGTON 
 
 
 WHEREAS,  the County of Lexington (hereinafter “the County”) owns a tract of land 

located on Hendrix Street in the County of Lexington, State of South Carolina; and 

 WHEREAS, the County has been asked by the Town of Lexington to convey 

approximately 8.90 acres of property to the Town of Lexington for purposes of operating a Pet 

Park; and 

 WHEREAS, the County of Lexington has previously conveyed 1.19 acres of adjacent 

property to the Town of Lexington for the purposes of construction of a water tank; and 

 WHEREAS, the County does not have a present need for the subject property and the 

County finds that it would serve a proper public purpose to provide the subject property to the 

Town of Lexington; and 

 WHEREAS, this Amendment is to clarify the purpose for which the subject property may 

be used;  

    
 NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained and enacted by Lexington County Council, as 

follows: 

 
1. Lexington County Council hereby approves the transfer by quit-claim deed of 

approximately 8.90 acres of property which is shown on the plat attached hereto and designated  

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 2County Council - Ordinance 13-02 - An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 12-08 Authorizing the Conveyance of 8.90 Acres, More or...
69



 2

 

as Tract “A” (Shown as 10.09 acres less and except the 1.19 acres which has already previously 

been conveyed to the Town of Lexington and by deed as recorded in Book 12856, at page 184). 

The conveyance shall contain a restriction that the property be used as a Pet Park or other public 

purposes and not for resale by the Town and should the Town cease using the property for a 

public purpose, the Town shall convey the subject property back to the County.  The conveyance 

shall also be subject to easement and restrictions of record and any governmental statute, 

ordinance, and regulations, including, but not limited to, any wetlands regulations since there are 

wetlands on the subject property. 

 
2. The Chairman of Lexington County Council is hereby authorized to execute and deliver a 

Quit-claim Deed for the subject property and to further execute on other appropriate documents 

for the conveyance of such property 

 
Enacted this ____ day of _______________________, 2013. 
 
  
 
             
     William B. Banning, Sr. 
     Chairman, Lexington County Council 
 
ATTEST:  
 
______________________________  
Diana W. Burnett, Clerk 
 
First Reading:  ___________________ 
 
Second Reading:  _________________ 
 
Third Reading:     _________________ 
 
Filed W/Clerk of Court:  _____________ 

4/18/2013   Page 2 of 2County Council - Ordinance 13-02 - An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 12-08 Authorizing the Conveyance of 8.90 Acres, More or...
70



 1

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 13-03_ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE LEASE OF THE COURTHOUSE 
PLAZA TO THE TOWN OF LEXINGTON FOR SPECIAL EVENTS  

 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Lexington (hereinafter “the County”) owns the Courthouse 

Plaza at the Intersection of Highway 1 and Highway 6; and 

 WHEREAS, through the combined efforts of the County of Lexington, Town of 

Lexington, and the Lexington Beautification Foundation, the Plaza has been landscaped with 

grass, shrubbery, trees, a fence, and a fountain, which has beautified the County property; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Lexington has requested to be allowed to have special events 

on the Courthouse Plaza; and 

 WHEREAS, the County is agreeable to allowing the Town to have special events on the 

Courthouse Plaza subject to the terms and conditions of the Lease Agreement attached hereto; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained and enacted by Lexington County Council, as 

follows: 

 
1. The Lexington County Council hereby approves the lease of the Courthouse Plaza 

property, pursuant to the terms and conditions as set forth in the attached Lease Agreement.   

2. The Chairman of the Lexington County Council is hereby authorized to execute and 

deliver the Lease Agreement in the substantially final form attached hereto, subject to the 

approval of any revisions as are not materially adverse to the County by the County 

Administrator and the County Attorney. 

 

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 6County Council - Ordinance 13-03 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Courthouse Plaza to the Town of Lexinfgton for...
71



1 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA   )  
       )  LEASE AGREEMENT 
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON     )  
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT entered into this _________ day of 2013, by and between County of 
Lexington, hereinafter designated as the “County” and Town of Lexington, hereinafter 
designated as the "Town," 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

1.  LEASED PREMISES.     The County, in consideration of the rents to be paid 
and the covenants and agreements to be performed by the Town, does hereby lease unto the 
Town those certain premises (hereinafter referred to as the "Premises") situated in the County of 
Lexington, State of South Carolina, to wit:   Plaza area adjacent to Courthouse for special events. 
 

2. TERM.    The term of this Lease shall be for a period of Twenty (20)   year(s), 
commencing on the 15th day of May 2013, and ending on the 30th day of March, 2033 
(the "Initial Term"), unless sooner terminated as hereinafter provided.  Thereafter, the lease will 
renew for one year terms unless notice of termination is given by either party 30 days before the 
expiration of the original twenty year term or any term thereafter. 

 

3.  RENT.     The Town agrees to pay rent for the Term based on the amount of 
$1.00 per year. 
 
 

4.  ASSIGNMENT.   The Town covenants not to assign or transfer this Lease or 
hypothecates or mortgages the same or sublet said premises or any part thereof without the 
written consent of the County, and such consent may be withheld by County for any reason. Any 
assignment, transfer, hypothecation, mortgage, or subletting without said written consent shall 
give the County the right to terminate this Lease and to re-enter and repossess the leased 
premises in the manner as is provided for by law. 
 

5.  USE AND OCCUPANCY.    The premises during the continuance of this Lease 
shall be used and occupied for Special Events.  Special Events is defined as an occasion when 
Town will invite the public to the leased premises for a specific purpose.  Town must give 
County written notice of the Special Event ten (10) days prior to the Special Event.  County 
reserves the right to have its own Special Events by giving the Town ten (10) days notice.  The 
parties will attempt to mutually resolve any conflicts in the scheduling of Special Events.  
Neither party shall schedule a Special Event that conflicts or interferes with the operation of the 
Courthouse facility.  Unless there is a Special Event, the leased premises shall remain open to the 
public for everyday use.  On any breach of this agreement, the County may at its option 
terminate this Lease forthwith and re-enter and repossess the leased premises in the manner as 
provided by law. 

 
6. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.    Town shall comply with all laws in regard to 

the use of the leased premises. 
 

4/18/2013   Page 2 of 6County Council - Ordinance 13-03 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Courthouse Plaza to the Town of Lexinfgton for...
72



2 

 

7.  CONDITION OF PROPERTY.    Neither the County nor its agents have made 
any representations with respect to the leased premises except as expressly set forth herein, and 
no rights, easements, or licenses are acquired by the Town by implication or otherwise except as 
expressly set forth in the provisions of this Lease. The taking of possession of the leased property 
by the Town shall be conclusive evidence that the Town accepts the same "as is" and that the 
leased property was in good condition at the time possession was taken. 

 
8. MAINTENANCE OF LEASED PROPERTY.   The Town shall maintain the 

leased premise during the term of the lease.  Maintenance shall include, but not be limited to, 
watering the grass and shrubbery, edging sidewalks, and cutting grass and trimming shrubbery.  
The Town shall pay the cost for water for the irrigation system and shall continue to maintain 
and pay for street lighting.  The County shall pay the other electricity costs associated with the 
leased premises.   The Town shall not alter the existing landscape and appearance of the leased 
premises. 
 

9.  ASSUMPTION OF RISK.  Town assumes the risk of any injury or damage that 
may occur to any employees or any other persons that have access to the leased premises as a 
result of Town leasing the subject property. 
 

10.  INJURIES AND PROPERTY DAMAGE.  Town shall be responsible for any 
liability that Town may create by its use of the leased premises 
 
 

11. INSURANCE: PAYMENT OF PREMIUM BY TOWN.  Town shall maintain 
liability insurance on the leased premises in an amount to be at least the liability exposure under 
the S.C. Tort Claims Act. 
 
 

12.  GROUND WATER MONITORING WELLS. The Town shall not do 
anything that will interfere with the existing underground monitoring wells located on the leased 
premises. 

 
13. LICENSES.      The Town shall obtain any and all licenses required to have any 

Special Event. 
 

14.  REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE.   It is agreed that each and every one of the 
rights, remedies, and benefits provided by this Lease shall be cumulative, and shall not be 
exclusive of any other of said rights, remedies, and benefits, or of any other rights, remedies, and 
benefits allowed by law. 
 

15.  WAIVER.  One or more waivers of any covenant or condition by the County 
shall not be construed as a waiver of a further breach of the same covenant or condition. 
 

16.  EMINENT DOMAIN.  County shall be entitled to any condemnation 
payments. 
 

17.  EXPIRATION.  At the expiration of the lease term, the Town shall 
surrender the leased property in as good condition as it was in at the beginning of the term. 
 

4/18/2013   Page 3 of 6County Council - Ordinance 13-03 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Courthouse Plaza to the Town of Lexinfgton for...
73



3 

 

18.  NOTICES.  Whenever under this Lease a provision is made of any kind, it shall 
be deemed sufficient notice and service thereof if such notice to the Town is in writing addressed 
to the Town at his last known post office address or at the leased premises and deposited in the 
mail with postage prepaid, and if such notice to the County is in writing addressed to the address 
contained herein or at the last address given by County to Town in writing and deposited in the 
mail with postage prepaid. 
 

19.  MEMORANDUM OF LEASE.  If Town desires to record this Lease in the 
Register of Deeds Office, a Memorandum of Lease which sets forth the term of the lease and the 
subject property shall be recorded.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereunder have executed this Lease and affixed 
their signatures the day and year first above written. 
 
IN THE PRESENCE OF:   LESSOR 
 

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON 

      BY:  COUNTY OF LEXINGTON 

      NAME: ______________________________ 

__________________________  TITLE: _______________________________  
AS TO LESSOR       

      LESSEE 

      BY: TOWN OF LEXINGTON 

      NAME: ______________________________ 

__________________________  TITLE: ______________________________  
AS TO LESSEE   

4/18/2013   Page 4 of 6County Council - Ordinance 13-03 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Courthouse Plaza to the Town of Lexinfgton for...
74



4 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA   )  
       )  PROBATE 
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON     )  
 

PERSONALLY appeared before me the undersigned witness and made oath that she saw 
the within-named________________________________________ County of Lexington, as 
Lessor, by ___________________________ its ________________________, sign, seal and, as 
its act and deed deliver the within-written LEASE AGREEMENT for the uses and purposes 
therein mentioned, and that she, with the other witness whose signature appears above, witnessed 
the execution thereof. 
 

      __________________________________ 
Witness 

 
SWORN to before me this _______________ day of  _____________________2013. 
 
_______________________________________ (L.S) 
Notary Public of South Carolina 
My Commission Expires: ______________________ 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA   )  
       )  PROBATE 
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON     )  
 

PERSONALLY appeared before me the undersigned witness and made oath that she saw 
the within-named____________________________________________ , as Lessee, by 
___________________________ its ________________________, sign, seal and, as its act and 
deed deliver the within-written LEASE AGREEMENT for the uses and purposes therein 
mentioned, and that she, with the other witness whose signature appears above, witnessed the 
execution thereof. 
 

      __________________________________ 
Witness 

 
SWORN to before me this _______________ day of  ___________________2013. 
 
_______________________________________ (L.S) 
Notary Public of South Carolina 
My Commission Expires: ______________________ 
 

4/18/2013   Page 5 of 6County Council - Ordinance 13-03 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Courthouse Plaza to the Town of Lexinfgton for...
75



 2

Enacted this ____ day of _______________________, 2013. 
 
  
 
 
             
     William B. Banning, Sr. 
     Chairman, Lexington County Council 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
______________________________  
Diana W. Burnett, Clerk 
 
First Reading:  ___________________ 
 
Second Reading:  _________________ 
 
Third Reading:     _________________ 
 
Filed W/Clerk of Court:  _____________ 

4/18/2013   Page 6 of 6County Council - Ordinance 13-03 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Courthouse Plaza to the Town of Lexinfgton for...
76



 
 
 

ORDINANCE 13-05 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AN ANNUAL BUDGET FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 
 

 
 WHEREAS, South Carolina Code§ 4-9-120 and § 4-9-130 require that County Council  
shall adopt an annual budget; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the annual budget shall be based upon estimated revenues and shall provide  
appropriations for County operations and debt service for all County departments and agencies.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained and enacted by the Lexington County Council as  
follows:  
 
SECTION 1 - GENERAL  
 
The fiscal year 2013-2014 County budget for Lexington County, South Carolina, a copy of  
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by way of reference, is hereby adopted.  
 
SECTION 2 – COUNTY-WIDE TAX LEVY  
 
There shall be levied, for County operations and for County designated millage agencies 
(Midlands Technical College and Riverbanks Park) on all taxable property in Lexington County,  
sufficient taxes to fund the referenced budget in the number of mills allowed in Code Section  
6-1-320.  
 
 County Ordinary     23.470 
 Law Enforcement    31.761 
 Fire Service     16.491 
 Library       6.211 
 Solid Waste       7.939 
 Indigent Care       0.887 
Total County Operating Millage   86.759 
 
 Midlands Technical College      2.970 
 Midlands Tech – Capital      1.404 
 Riverbanks Park       1.093 
 Mental Health        0.500 
 

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 3County Council - Ordinance 13-05 - Ordinance Adopting an Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 - 1st Reading  (* The...
77



SECTION 3 - DEBT SERVICE TAX LEVY  
 
The County Auditor is hereby authorized and directed to levy millages for all county and  
special district debt service funds in amounts sufficient to retire their respective debts.  
 
SECTION 4 – SPECIAL PURPOSE DISTRICT TAX LEVY  
 
There shall be levied, for the special purpose districts (Lexington County Recreation and Aging  
Commission, Irmo-Chapin Recreation Commission, and Irmo Fire District) on all taxable 
property in their respective districts, sufficient taxes to fund their respective budgets in the 
number of mills, allowed in Code Section 6-1-320.  
 
 Lexington Recreation Commission  12.315 
 Irmo-Chapin Recreation Commission 13.354 
 Irmo-Fire District    16.491 
 
SECTION 5 - BUDGETARY ESTIMATES  
 
Anticipated revenues are stated as estimates and the respective appropriations are  
maximum and conditional. Should actual funding sources for any such fund be less than  
projected, the Administrator shall reduce budgeted expenditures attributable to said fund.  
 
SECTION 6 - BUDGETARY CONTROL  
 
Departments and/or other organizational units are bound to the appropriated expenditures  
incorporated herein. Upon the written request of the department head, the County Administrator,  
or his designated representative, is hereby authorized to effect transfers between line items.  
 
Any departments which overspend their spending levels for two consecutive months shall  
have sufficient personnel in their department removed from the County payroll to fully  
compensate, prior to June 30, 2014, the impending overrun.  
 
SECTION 7 - LINE ITEM CARRYOVERS  
 
Any line items previously appropriated and/or properly encumbered as of June 30, 2013  
shall be carried forward as an appropriation of fiscal year 2013-2014 upon the recommendation 
of the County Administrator, and by passage of a budgetary amendment resolution by County 
Council.  
 
SECTION 8 - NEW GRANTS  
 
Grant funds applied for or received after the budget year, and therefore not stated in this  
budget ordinance, shall, by passage of a budgetary amendment resolution by County Council  
authorizing the acceptance of the grant and its appropriations, be accounted for in appropriate  
special revenues funds. The specific grant provisions shall direct the manner of expenditure of  
these funds.  
 
 
 

4/18/2013   Page 2 of 3County Council - Ordinance 13-05 - Ordinance Adopting an Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 - 1st Reading  (* The...
78



SECTION 9 - OTHER MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPTS  
 
Revenues other than those originally budgeted may be expended as directed by their  
respective revenue source after they are accepted and appropriated by the County Council by  
passage of the budgetary amendment resolution. Such funds include, but are not limited to,  
contributions, donations, special events, insurance and similar recoveries. These funds may be  
appropriated for any costs or overruns or new projects upon approval of County Council.  
 
SECTION 10 - LINE OF CREDIT AUTHORIZATION  
 
From time to time it may be necessary for the administration of the County (or any other  
agency for which the county levies taxes) to borrow in anticipation of tax revenues to guarantee  
continuity in regular operations. To provide for such contingencies, the administration of the  
county (or the respective agencies) is hereby authorized to borrow in anticipation of ad valorem 
tax collections. Such authorization may only be exercised upon certification of need by both the  
County Treasurer and the Chief Financial Officer (or the CEO of the agency) and any amount 
borrowed must be obtained at the lowest possible interest rate and repaid as quickly as practical.  
 
SECTION 11 - SEVERABILITY  
 
If for any reason any provision of this Ordinance shall be declared invalid or unconstitutional, 
such shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Ordinance.  
 
 This Ordinance shall become effective July 1, 2013. 
 
 Enacted this _____________ day of __________________ , 2013. 
 
 
 
             
      _______________________________________ 
      William B. Banning, Sr., Chairman  
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
__________________________________  
Diana W. Burnett, Clerk 
 
 
First Reading:  
Second Reading:  
Public Hearing:  
Third & Final Reading: 
Filed w/Clerk of Court:  
 
 
 

4/18/2013   Page 3 of 3County Council - Ordinance 13-05 - Ordinance Adopting an Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 - 1st Reading  (* The...
79



C O M M I T T E E   R E P O R T 
 
 
 
 
 
RE:  FY 2013 Bulletproof Vest Application 
 
DATE: April 9, 2013 
 
COMMITTEE: Justice 
 
MAJORITY REPORT: Yes 
  
 
The Justice Committee met on Tuesday, April 9, 2013, to review the Sheriff’s Department’s request 
to apply for the FY 2013 Bulletproof Vest Program Grant. 
 
Colonel Allen Paavel, Sheriff’s Department, presented a request to apply for the Bulletproof Vest 
Program Grant in the amount of $8,000.  There is a fifty percent County match.  If approved, the 
funds will be used to purchase 26 replacement vests for the Sheriff’s Department.  (The Sheriff’s 
Department has budgeted $16,000 in the FY2014 Requested Budget for bulletproof vest 
replacements.) 
 
The Justice Committee voted unanimously to recommend that full Council approve staff’s request to 
apply for the grant.  
 
 
 
 

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 1County Council - FY 2013 Bulletproof Vest Application - 04/23/2013
80



C O M M I T T E E   R E P O R T 
 
 
 
 
 
RE:  FY 2013 State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP) Application 
 
DATE: April 9, 2013 
 
COMMITTEE: Justice 
 
MAJORITY REPORT: Yes 
  
 
The Justice Committee met on Tuesday, April 9, 2013, to review the Sheriff’s Department’s request 
to apply for the FY 2013 State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP) Grant. 
 
Colonel Allen Paavel, Sheriff’s Department, presented a request to apply for the SCAAP Grant.  The 
program is a 100 percent grant that will offset the expense of housing criminal aliens for at least four 
consecutive days in the Lexington County Detention Center.  There is no County match required.  If 
approved, Justice Benefits, Inc. will receive 22 percent of the funds awarded for services provided 
and the remaining funds will go toward jail personnel’s salaries. 
 
The Justice Committee voted unanimously to recommend that full Council approve staff’s request to 
apply for the grant.  

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 1County Council - FY 2013 State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP) Assistance - 04/23/2013
81



 1

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 13-03_ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE LEASE OF THE COURTHOUSE 
PLAZA TO THE TOWN OF LEXINGTON FOR SPECIAL EVENTS  

 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Lexington (hereinafter “the County”) owns the Courthouse 

Plaza at the Intersection of Highway 1 and Highway 6; and 

 WHEREAS, through the combined efforts of the County of Lexington, Town of 

Lexington, and the Lexington Beautification Foundation, the Plaza has been landscaped with 

grass, shrubbery, trees, a fence, and a fountain, which has beautified the County property; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Lexington has requested to be allowed to have special events 

on the Courthouse Plaza; and 

 WHEREAS, the County is agreeable to allowing the Town to have special events on the 

Courthouse Plaza subject to the terms and conditions of the Lease Agreement attached hereto; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained and enacted by Lexington County Council, as 

follows: 

 
1. The Lexington County Council hereby approves the lease of the Courthouse Plaza 

property, pursuant to the terms and conditions as set forth in the attached Lease Agreement.   

2. The Chairman of the Lexington County Council is hereby authorized to execute and 

deliver the Lease Agreement in the substantially final form attached hereto, subject to the 

approval of any revisions as are not materially adverse to the County by the County 

Administrator and the County Attorney. 

 

4/18/2013   Page 1 of 6County Council - Ordinance 13-03 - Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Courthouse Plaza to the Town of Lexington for...
82



1 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA   )  
       )  LEASE AGREEMENT 
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON     )  
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT entered into this _________ day of 2013, by and between County of 
Lexington, hereinafter designated as the “County” and Town of Lexington, hereinafter 
designated as the "Town," 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

1.  LEASED PREMISES.     The County, in consideration of the rents to be paid 
and the covenants and agreements to be performed by the Town, does hereby lease unto the 
Town those certain premises (hereinafter referred to as the "Premises") situated in the County of 
Lexington, State of South Carolina, to wit:   Plaza area adjacent to Courthouse for special events. 
 

2. TERM.    The term of this Lease shall be for a period of Twenty (20)   year(s), 
commencing on the 15th day of May 2013, and ending on the 30th day of March, 2033 
(the "Initial Term"), unless sooner terminated as hereinafter provided.  Thereafter, the lease will 
renew for one year terms unless notice of termination is given by either party 30 days before the 
expiration of the original twenty year term or any term thereafter. 

 

3.  RENT.     The Town agrees to pay rent for the Term based on the amount of 
$1.00 per year. 
 
 

4.  ASSIGNMENT.   The Town covenants not to assign or transfer this Lease or 
hypothecates or mortgages the same or sublet said premises or any part thereof without the 
written consent of the County, and such consent may be withheld by County for any reason. Any 
assignment, transfer, hypothecation, mortgage, or subletting without said written consent shall 
give the County the right to terminate this Lease and to re-enter and repossess the leased 
premises in the manner as is provided for by law. 
 

5.  USE AND OCCUPANCY.    The premises during the continuance of this Lease 
shall be used and occupied for Special Events.  Special Events is defined as an occasion when 
Town will invite the public to the leased premises for a specific purpose.  Town must give 
County written notice of the Special Event ten (10) days prior to the Special Event.  County 
reserves the right to have its own Special Events by giving the Town ten (10) days notice.  The 
parties will attempt to mutually resolve any conflicts in the scheduling of Special Events.  
Neither party shall schedule a Special Event that conflicts or interferes with the operation of the 
Courthouse facility.  Unless there is a Special Event, the leased premises shall remain open to the 
public for everyday use.  On any breach of this agreement, the County may at its option 
terminate this Lease forthwith and re-enter and repossess the leased premises in the manner as 
provided by law. 

 
6. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.    Town shall comply with all laws in regard to 

the use of the leased premises. 
 

4/18/2013   Page 2 of 6County Council - Ordinance 13-03 - Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Courthouse Plaza to the Town of Lexington for...
83



2 

 

7.  CONDITION OF PROPERTY.    Neither the County nor its agents have made 
any representations with respect to the leased premises except as expressly set forth herein, and 
no rights, easements, or licenses are acquired by the Town by implication or otherwise except as 
expressly set forth in the provisions of this Lease. The taking of possession of the leased property 
by the Town shall be conclusive evidence that the Town accepts the same "as is" and that the 
leased property was in good condition at the time possession was taken. 

 
8. MAINTENANCE OF LEASED PROPERTY.   The Town shall maintain the 

leased premise during the term of the lease.  Maintenance shall include, but not be limited to, 
watering the grass and shrubbery, edging sidewalks, and cutting grass and trimming shrubbery.  
The Town shall pay the cost for water for the irrigation system and shall continue to maintain 
and pay for street lighting.  The County shall pay the other electricity costs associated with the 
leased premises.   The Town shall not alter the existing landscape and appearance of the leased 
premises. 
 

9.  ASSUMPTION OF RISK.  Town assumes the risk of any injury or damage that 
may occur to any employees or any other persons that have access to the leased premises as a 
result of Town leasing the subject property. 
 

10.  INJURIES AND PROPERTY DAMAGE.  Town shall be responsible for any 
liability that Town may create by its use of the leased premises 
 
 

11. INSURANCE: PAYMENT OF PREMIUM BY TOWN.  Town shall maintain 
liability insurance on the leased premises in an amount to be at least the liability exposure under 
the S.C. Tort Claims Act. 
 
 

12.  GROUND WATER MONITORING WELLS. The Town shall not do 
anything that will interfere with the existing underground monitoring wells located on the leased 
premises. 

 
13. LICENSES.      The Town shall obtain any and all licenses required to have any 

Special Event. 
 

14.  REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE.   It is agreed that each and every one of the 
rights, remedies, and benefits provided by this Lease shall be cumulative, and shall not be 
exclusive of any other of said rights, remedies, and benefits, or of any other rights, remedies, and 
benefits allowed by law. 
 

15.  WAIVER.  One or more waivers of any covenant or condition by the County 
shall not be construed as a waiver of a further breach of the same covenant or condition. 
 

16.  EMINENT DOMAIN.  County shall be entitled to any condemnation 
payments. 
 

17.  EXPIRATION.  At the expiration of the lease term, the Town shall 
surrender the leased property in as good condition as it was in at the beginning of the term. 
 

4/18/2013   Page 3 of 6County Council - Ordinance 13-03 - Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Courthouse Plaza to the Town of Lexington for...
84



3 

 

18.  NOTICES.  Whenever under this Lease a provision is made of any kind, it shall 
be deemed sufficient notice and service thereof if such notice to the Town is in writing addressed 
to the Town at his last known post office address or at the leased premises and deposited in the 
mail with postage prepaid, and if such notice to the County is in writing addressed to the address 
contained herein or at the last address given by County to Town in writing and deposited in the 
mail with postage prepaid. 
 

19.  MEMORANDUM OF LEASE.  If Town desires to record this Lease in the 
Register of Deeds Office, a Memorandum of Lease which sets forth the term of the lease and the 
subject property shall be recorded.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereunder have executed this Lease and affixed 
their signatures the day and year first above written. 
 
IN THE PRESENCE OF:   LESSOR 
 

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON 

      BY:  COUNTY OF LEXINGTON 

      NAME: ______________________________ 

__________________________  TITLE: _______________________________  
AS TO LESSOR       

      LESSEE 

      BY: TOWN OF LEXINGTON 

      NAME: ______________________________ 

__________________________  TITLE: ______________________________  
AS TO LESSEE   

4/18/2013   Page 4 of 6County Council - Ordinance 13-03 - Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Courthouse Plaza to the Town of Lexington for...
85



4 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA   )  
       )  PROBATE 
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON     )  
 

PERSONALLY appeared before me the undersigned witness and made oath that she saw 
the within-named________________________________________ County of Lexington, as 
Lessor, by ___________________________ its ________________________, sign, seal and, as 
its act and deed deliver the within-written LEASE AGREEMENT for the uses and purposes 
therein mentioned, and that she, with the other witness whose signature appears above, witnessed 
the execution thereof. 
 

      __________________________________ 
Witness 

 
SWORN to before me this _______________ day of  _____________________2013. 
 
_______________________________________ (L.S) 
Notary Public of South Carolina 
My Commission Expires: ______________________ 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA   )  
       )  PROBATE 
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON     )  
 

PERSONALLY appeared before me the undersigned witness and made oath that she saw 
the within-named____________________________________________ , as Lessee, by 
___________________________ its ________________________, sign, seal and, as its act and 
deed deliver the within-written LEASE AGREEMENT for the uses and purposes therein 
mentioned, and that she, with the other witness whose signature appears above, witnessed the 
execution thereof. 
 

      __________________________________ 
Witness 

 
SWORN to before me this _______________ day of  ___________________2013. 
 
_______________________________________ (L.S) 
Notary Public of South Carolina 
My Commission Expires: ______________________ 
 

4/18/2013   Page 5 of 6County Council - Ordinance 13-03 - Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Courthouse Plaza to the Town of Lexington for...
86



 2

Enacted this ____ day of _______________________, 2013. 
 
  
 
 
             
     William B. Banning, Sr. 
     Chairman, Lexington County Council 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
______________________________  
Diana W. Burnett, Clerk 
 
First Reading:  ___________________ 
 
Second Reading:  _________________ 
 
Third Reading:     _________________ 
 
Filed W/Clerk of Court:  _____________ 

4/18/2013   Page 6 of 6County Council - Ordinance 13-03 - Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Courthouse Plaza to the Town of Lexington for...
87


	Agenda
	A
	B
	C
	D
	E
	F
	G
	H
	I
	J
	K
	L
	M
	N
	O
	P
	Q
	R
	S
	T
	U
	V
	W
	X
	Y
	Z
	1
	2
	3

